

# FACTORS INFLUENCING TEACHERS' BEHAVIORAL INTENTION AND UTILIZATION OF MADRASATI IN PUBLIC SCHOOLS IN RIYADH, SAUDI ARABIA



By

ALHARBI, HAMAD MUAYBID A

Thesis Submitted to the School of Graduate Studies, Universiti Putra Malaysia, in Fulfilment of the Requirements for the Degree of Doctor of Philosophy

August 2022

FPP 2022 66

# COPYRIGHT

All material contained within the thesis, including without limitation text, logos, icons, photographs, and all other artwork, is copyright material of Universiti Putra Malaysia unless otherwise stated. Use may be made of any material contained within the thesis for non-commercial purposes from the copyright holder. Commercial use of material may only be made with the express, prior, written permission of Universiti Putra Malaysia.

Copyright © Universiti Putra Malaysia



Abstract of thesis presented to the Senate of Universiti Putra Malaysia in fulfilment of the requirement for the degree of Doctor of Philosophy

# FACTORS INFLUENCING TEACHERS' BEHAVIORAL INTENTION AND UTILIZATION OF MADRASATI IN PUBLIC SCHOOLS IN RIYADH, SAUDI ARABIA

By

## ALHARBI, HAMAD MUAYBID A

August 2022

Chairperson : Habibah binti Ab Jalil, PhD Faculty : Educational Studies

Modern-day technology in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia (KSA) is being continuously provided across schools. The utilization of Madrasati (M) as a learning management system (LMS) among teachers in public schools in Riyadh has recently attracted attention because of its role in improving the quality of the educational system in KSA. However, the key problem is the low acceptance and utilization of M LMS among teachers in KSA, particularly in Riyadh. The satisfactory teacher's behavioral intention (BI) toward accepting and utilizing M LMS technology is still a challenge in Riyadh. There is little or no specific research report on the adoption of M LMS in intermediate and secondary schools in Riyadh. Therefore, this study investigates the factors influencing teachers' BI and the utilization of M LMS in Saudi public schools by employing the survey method based on the quantitative approach. The factors selected to determine teachers' BI on M LMS utilization are performance expectancy (PE), effort expectancy (EE), social influence (SI), facilitating conditions (FC), attitudes, and competence. The questionnaire copies were distributed to 374 Saudi teachers from different schools using simple random sampling. Various statistical analyses were used to validate the data, including reliability and validity of the instrument, pilot test, data normality, descriptive analysis, structural equation modeling (SEM) using AMOS software, CFA, measurement model, path analysis, and mediation analysis. The results of SEM regarding the influence of BI on PE, EE, SI, FC, attitude, and competence indicated that the PE construct has a positive and statistically significant effect on M LMS utilization. Meanwhile, EE has a positive and significant effect on M LMS. Similarly, the relationships between SI and M LMS utilization, FC and M LMS utilization, as well as competence and M LMS utilization are also significant. The results indicate that the alternative hypotheses were accepted. On the contrary, the relationship between attitude and M LMS utilization is not significant, and the null hypothesis is accepted. The results of the mediating effect showed that PE, SI, FC, and competence have an indirect effect on M LMS utilization through the mediating role of BI. BI is statistically significant and partially mediates the relationship between PE, SI, FC, competence, and M LMS utilization. However, EE and attitude do not affect M LMS

utilization through the BI mediator. The results of the moderation effect of gender on M LMS utilization in Saudi Arabia revealed that the beta value of the male for PE, EE, and SI on M LMS utilization is significant. Moreover, the findings demonstrated that the beta value of females for FC is significant, as opposed to male FC on M LMS utilization, which is not significant. Therefore, gender has a significant moderating role in the relationship between FC and M LMS utilization. In addition, the beta value of males and females for attitude and competence is not significant. Thus, the age factor does not significantly moderate the relationship between these variables and M LMS utilization. The PE, SI, FC, and competence factors significantly influence teachers' BI and M LMS utilization in public schools in Riyadh, KSA. The findings obtained have practical implications for educational systems in Saudi Arabia to promote the use of M LMS among school teachers. Schools should consider the existing BI of teachers before deciding whether the system is going to be utilized or not, particularly in Riyadh. Also, the findings would encourage the successful integration of M LMS into the teaching and learning process in Riyadh.

Abstrak tesis yang dikemukakan kepada Senat Universiti Putra Malaysia sebagai memenuhi keperluan untuk Ijazah Doktor Falsafah

# FAKTOR-FAKTOR YANG MEMPENGARUHI NIAT TINGKAH LAKU GURU DAN PENGGUNAAN MADRASATI DI SEKOLAH AWAM SAUDI DI RIYADH

Oleh

#### ALHARBI, HAMAD MUAYBID A

**Ogos 2022** 

Pengerusi Fakulti : Habibah binti Ab Jalil, PhD : Pengajian Pendidikan

Kerajaan Arab Saudi (KSA) sedang menyediakan teknologi moden secara berterusan di seluruh sekolah. Penggunaan Madrasati (M) sebagai sistem pengurusan pembelajaran (LMS) dalam kalangan guru di sekolah awam di Riyadh sejak kebelakangan ini mendapat perhatian kerana peranannya dalam meningkatkan kualiti sistem pendidikan di KSA. Walau bagaimanapun, masih terdapat masalah utama iaitu penerimaan dan penggunaan M yang rendah dalam kalangan guru-guru di KSA, khususnya di Riyadh. Sikap serta tahap kepuasan (BI) guru terhadap penerimaan dan penggunaan teknologi M masih menjadi suatu cabaran di Riyadh. Terdapat sedikit atau tiada laporan penyelidikan khusus mengenai penggunaan M di sekolah-sekolah pertengahan dan menengah di Riyadh. Oleh itu, kajian ini menyiasat faktor-faktor yang mempengaruhi BI guru dan penggunaan M di sekolah awam Saudi dengan menggunakan kaedah tinjauan berdasarkan pendekatan kuantitatif. Faktor-faktor yang dipilih untuk menentukan BI guru terhadap penggunaan M ialah jangkaan prestasi (PE), jangkaan usaha (EE), pengaruh sosial (SI), keadaan fasilitator (FC), sikap menggunakan M (ATT) dna kecekapan menggunakan M (COM). Set soal selidik telah diedarkan kepada 374 orang guru Saudi dari sekolah yang berbeza menggunakan persampelan rawak mudah. Pelbagai analisis statistik digunakan untuk mengesahkan data, termasuk kebolehpercayaan dan kesahan instrumen, ujian rintis, kenormalan data, analisis deskriptif, pemodelan persamaan struktur (SEM) menggunakan perisian AMOS, CFA, model pengukuran, analisis laluan, dan analisis pengantaraan. Keputusan SEM mengenai pengaruh BI terhadap PE, EE, SI, FC, ATT, dan COM menunjukkan bahawa konstruk PE mempunyai kesan positif dan signifikan secara statistik terhadap penggunaan M. Manakala, EE memberi kesan positif dan signifikan terhadap M. Hubungan antara penggunaan SI dan M, penggunaan FC dan M, serta kecekapan dan penggunaan M juga adalah penting. Keputusan menunjukkan bahawa hipotesis alternatif telah diterima. Hubungan antara ATT dan penggunaan M adalah tidak signifikan, maka hipotesis nol diterima. Keputusan kesan pengantaraan menunjukkan bahawa PE, SI, FC, dan COM mempunyai kesan tidak langsung terhadap penggunaan M melalui peranan pengantara BI. BI adalah signifikan secara statistik dan sebahagiannya menjadi pengantara

hubungan antara PE, SI, FC, COM dan penggunaan M. Walau bagaimanapun, EE dan ATT tidak memberi kesan ke atas penggunaan M melalui pengantara BI. Keputusan kesan penyederhanaan bagi jantina pada penggunaan M di Arab Saudi mendedahkan bahawa nilai beta guru lelaki untuk PE, EE, dan SI pada penggunaan M adalah signifikan. Selain itu, penemuan menunjukkan bahawa nilai beta wanita untuk FC adalah signifikan, berbanding dengan FC lelaki pada penggunaan M, yang tidak signifikan. Oleh itu, jantina mempunyai peranan penyederhana yang signifikan dalam hubungan antara penggunaan FC dan M. Di samping itu, nilai beta bagi lelaki dan perempuan untuk ATT dan COM adalah tidak signifikan. Oleh itu, faktor umur tidak menyederhanakan secara signifikan hubungan antara pembolehubah ini dan penggunaan M. Faktor PE, SI, FC dan COM secara signifikan mempengaruhi penggunaan BI dan M LMS guru di sekolah awam di Riyadh, KSA. Dapatan yang diperolehi mempunyai implikasi yang praktikal terhadap sistem pendidikan di Arab Saudi bagi menggalakkan penggunaan M dalam kalangan guru sekolah. Sekolah harus mempertimbangkan BI sedia ada oleh guru sebelum memutuskan sama ada sistem itu akan digunakan atau tidak, khususnya di Riyadh. Selain itu, penemuan ini akan menggalakkan integrasi M yang berjaya ke dalam proses pengajaran dan pembelajaran di Riyadh

#### ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

The journey towards my life's goals is not a solo effort. I need to have Allah and people around me who believe in and support me. First and foremost, I would like to Thank Allah for making this possible and for enabling me to successfully complete this research. Thank you, Oh Allah. I am particularly grateful to my lovely parents, brothers and sisters. Without their prayers and support, I would not have reached this stage in my life. Thank you for giving me constant support, encouragement, advice, wisdom and, most importantly, love.

I would like to express my sincere thanks and appreciation to my dissertation supervisor, Associate Professor Dr. Habibah Binti Ab Jalil. She gave me invaluable support, time, guidance, patience, and great expertise. Had it not been for her invaluable support and encouragement, I would not have been able to complete this research. She was always ready at any time with kind words and wisdom to calm situations. I am grateful to you. Thank you.

I would like to extend my thanks to my dissertation committee members, Associate Prof. Dr. Muhd Khaizer Omar and Dr. Mohd Hazwan Mohd Puad, for their constructive comments and invaluable feedback throughout the whole project. Their comments and suggestions provided me with good ideas and helped me to improve my research; this contribution has resulted in the good quality of the thesis. You helped me so much, and your thoughts were always well thought out and to the point. I truly appreciate everything you did for me over the years. To both of you, I say thank you very much.

I also thank Prof. Venkatesh, Dr. Mohammed Jaber Mohammed Asiri, and Dr. Mohammed Alshaikhi for their explicit permission to use and modify the instrument for this study. Additionally, all the panel of experts, Dr. Mohamed Shaltout, Dr. Othman Talib, and Dr. Mohammed Al-Hojailan, for their assistance in instrument development and evaluation. Their insights and experience have indeed improved the credibility of the research instrument. The language expert, Dr. Murad Abdu Saeed Mohammed, for his help in translating and assessing the instrument.

I am hugely indebted to Mr. Abdullah Al-Taktli and Mr. Adel Al-Rasheed from the General Administration of Public Education in Riyadh for facilitating and helping to distribute the questionnaire. Also, the teachers who participated in the study. I would also like to thank the Ministry of Education in Saudi Arabia for their support. In particular, the General Administration of E-Learning and Distance Education.

I would like to thank my lovely wife for her sacrifice and helping me to achieve this goal. Without my wife's support and encouragement, I could not have finished this research. It was you who kept alive the fundamentals of our family, and I understand it was difficult for you to take care of the family while I was busy. Therefore, I want to say thanks for everything and may Allah give you all the best in return. Finally, I am heartily grateful to express my utmost gratitude and appreciation to each and every one of you who has contributed in one way or another by being a part of my thesis. Thank you very much!

This thesis was submitted to the Senate of Universiti Putra Malaysia and has been accepted as fulfilment of the requirement for the degree of Doctor of Philosophy. The members of the Supervisory Committee were as follows:

#### Habibah binti Ab Jalil, PhD

Associate Professor Faculty of Educational Studies Universiti Putra Malaysia (Chaiperson)

# Muhd Khaizer bin Omar, PhD

Senior Lecturer Faculty of Educational Studies Universiti Putra Malaysia (Member)

#### Mohd Hazwan bin Mohd Puad, PhD

Senior Lecturer Faculty of Educational Studies Universiti Putra Malaysia (Member)

#### ZALILAH MOHD SHARIFF, PhD

Professor and Dean School of Graduate Studies Universiti Putra Malaysia

Date: 12 January 2023

# **Declaration by Members of Supervisory Committee**

This is to confirm that:

- the research conducted and the writing of this thesis was under our supervision;
- supervision responsibilities as stated in the Universiti Putra Malaysia (Graduate Studies) Rules 2003 (Revision 2012-2013) are adhered to.

Signature: Name of Chairman of Supervisory Committee:	РМ	
Signature:		
Name of		
Member of Supervisory		
Committee:		
Signature:		
Name of		
Member of		
Supervisory		
Committee:		

# TABLE OF CONTENTS

	Page
ABSTRACT	i
ABSTRAK	iii
ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS	v
APPROVAL	vii
DECLARATION	viii
LIST OF TABLES	xiv
LIST OF FIGURES	xvi
LIST OF ABBREVIATIONS	xviii

CHAPT	ER			
1	INTR	CODUCTION		1
-	1.1	Background of the Study		1
	1.2	Technology in Education		2
		1.2.1 Technology Utilization		3
		1.2.2 Education and Technology in Rivadh of the	KSA	4
		1.2.3 Madrasati (M) in KSA and its Usage dur	ring the	
		COVID-19 Pandemic	C	6
	1.3	Factors Influencing the Utilization of Madrasati		7
	1.4	Statement of the Problem		9
	1.5	Objectives of the Study		11
	1.6	Research Questions		11
	1.7	Research Hypotheses		12
	1.8	Significance of the Study		14
	1.9	Scope and Limitation of the Study		15
	1.10	Definition of Key Terms		15
		1.10.1 Performance Expectancy		15
		1.10.2 Effort Expectancy		16
		1.10.3 Social Influence		16
		1.10.4 Facilitating Conditions		16
1.10.5 Attitude to Use M LMS			16	
		1.10.6 Competency to Use M LMS		17
		1.10.7 Behavioral Intention		17
		1.10.8 M LMS Utilization		17
	1.1.1	1.10.9 Learning Management System		18
	1.11	Summary		19
2	LITE	RATURE REVIEW		20
	2.1	Introduction		20
	2.2	History of Educational Technology in the Kingdom of	of Saudi	
		Arabia		20
	2.3	Learning Management System	22	
	2.4	E-learning Technology	22	
	2.5	Benefits of E-learning	24	
	2.6	Implementation of Learning Management System	25	
	2.7	Utilization of the Learning Management System	26	

		2.7.1 Utilization of Learning Management System in	
		Public Schools	26
		2.7.2 Madrasati Management System	27
		2.7.3 Madrasati LMS Utilization in Public Schools in	
		Riyadh	28
	2.8	Factors Influencing Utilization of Madrasati LMS	29
		2.8.1 Performance Expectancy	29
		2.8.2 Effort Expectancy	30
		2.8.2 Social Influence	30
		2.8.5 Social influence	31
		2.8.4 Function of the second s	32
		2.8.6 Competence to Use M LMS	32
		2.8.0 Competence to Use in Lins	34
		2.8.7 Demographic Data	25
	2.0	2.8.8 Demographic Data	26
	2.9	2.0.1 Unified Theory of Acceptones and Use of	50
		2.9.1 Unified Theory of Acceptance and Use of	20
		Technology (UTAUT)	39
	2.10	2.9.2 Technology Acceptance Model (TAM)	40
	2.10	Conceptual Framework	41
	2.11	Summary	43
•			
3	MET	HODOLOGY	44
	3.1	Introduction	44
	3.2	Research Design	44
	3.3	Research Method	45
	3.4	Location of the Study	45
	3.5	Study Population	46
	3.6	Sample Size Determination	47
	3.7	Sampling Procedure	49
	3.8	Instrumentation	50
		3.8.1 Adaptation of the Instruments	51
		3.8.2 Back-to-Back Translation	52
	3.9	Validity and Reliability of Instrument	53
		3.9.1 Validity	53
		3.9.2 Reliability	53
	3.10	Pilot Study	54
		3.10.1 Justification	54
		3.10.2 Study Population	54
		3.10.3 Sample Size and Sampling	54
		3 10 4 Instrumentation	55
		3.10.5 Reliability and Cronbach's alpha ( $\alpha$ )	55
		3 10.6 Results of Pilot Study	55
	3 1 1	Data Collection	60
	3.12	Preliminary Data Analysis	61
	5.12	3 12 1 Test of Normality	61
		3.12.1 Test of Outliers	63
	3 1 2	Data Analysis Procedures	65
	5.15	2 12 1 Descriptive Statistic	03 65
		2.12.2 Evploretory Data Analysis (EDA)	03 45
		2.12.2 Exploratory Data Analysis (EDA)	03
	2.1.4	5.15.5 Interential Statistic	66
	5.14	Justification for Chosen Structural Equation Modeling	67

3.1:	5 Structural Equation Modelling	67
	3.15.1 Confirmatory factor analysis (CFA)	67
3.10	5 Measurement Model	79
	3.16.1 Model Fitness of Measurement Model	80
	3.16.2 Discriminant Validity	80
	3 16 3 Structural Model	81
3.17	7 Mediation Analysis	81
3.1	R Ethical Considerations	82
5.10	2 18 1 Descarch Governance Approval	82
	2.18.2 Coining Access to Despendents	82
2.14	3.18.2 Gaining Access to Respondents	03
3.1	9 Summary	85
4 RE	SULTS AND DISCUSSION	85
4.1	Introduction	85
4.2	Demographic Profile	85
4.3	Descriptive Statistics Based on Final CFA	87
4.4	Factors Influencing the Utilization of M LMS	87
	4.4.1 Performance Expectancy	87
	4.4.2 Effort Expectancy	88
	4.4.3 Social Influence	89
	4.4.4 Facilitating Conditions	89
	4.4.5 Attitude to Use M LMS	90
	4.4.6 Competence to Use MLMS	91
	4 4 7 Behavioral Intention	91
	4 4 8 M L MS Litilization	92
15	Structural Model Analysis	93
т.5 Л б	Role of Behavioral Intention (Mediator)	95
4.0	Analyzing the Madiating Effect	95
4.7	Analyzing the Medial Influencing the Utilization of M	90
4.8	LMS	99
4.9	Moderation Effect of Gender on Utilization of M LMS101	
	4.9.1 Evaluation of Overall Model for the Presence of	
	Moderation Effect of Gender	101
	4.9.2 Moderation Effect of Gender-Based on Individual	101
	Path	102
	4.9.3 Moderation Effect of Age on M LMS Utilization	103
	4.9.4 Evaluation of Overall Model for the Presence of	
	Moderation Effect of Age	104
	4.9.5 Moderation Effect of Age based on Individual Path	104
4.10	) Summary	107
5 511	MMARY DISCUSSION IMPLICATIONS AND	
RE	COMMENDATIONS FOR FUTURE RESEARCH	109
51	Introduction	109
52	Summary of the Study	109
53	Summary of the Research Findings	110
5.5 5 A	Discussion of Research Findings	112
5.4	5 A 1 Derformance Expectancy	113
	5.4.2 Effort Expectancy	113
	5.4.2 Social Influence	113
	5.4.5 Social influence	114
	5.4.4 Facilitating Conditions	114

		5.4.5	Attitude to Use M LMS	114
		5.4.6	Competence to Use M LMS	115
		5.4.7	Madrasati (M) Utilization for Teachers	115
		5.4.8	Level of Performance Expectancy of M LMS	
			Utilization	116
		5.4.9	Level of Effort Expectancy of M LMS Utilization	116
		5.4.10	Level of Social Influence of M LMS Utilization	117
		5.4.11	Level of Facilitating Conditions of M LMS	
			Utilization	117
		5.4.12	Attitude to Use M LMS of Utilization of M LMS	118
		5.4.13	Competence to Use M LMS of Utilization of M	
			LMS	118
		5.4.14	Madrasati (M) utilization among Teachers	119
		5.4.15	Behavioral Intention (Mediator)	119
		5.4.16	Gender and Age (Moderator)	121
	5.5	Implica	tions	122
		5.5.1	Theoretical Implications	122
		5.5.2	Practical Implications	123
	5.6	Recom	mendations for Future Research	124
REFERE	NCES			126
APPEND	ICES			158
BIODAT	A OF	STUDE	NT	234
LIST OF	PUBL	ICATIO	DNS	235

(G)

# LIST OF TABLES

Table		Page
3.1	Minimum Sample Size According to Formula Used	49
3.2	Questionnaire Sections	52
3.3	Recommended Alpha Ranges	54
3.4	Result of Reliability Cronbach's Alpha	55
3.5	Percentage of Response Rate	61
3.6	Result of Data Normality	62
3.7	Result of Univariate Outliers Based on Standardized Values	63
3.8	PE construct reliability and AVE	68
3.9	EE construct reliability and AVE	69
3.10	SI construct reliability and AVE	70
3.11	FC construct reliability and AVE	71
3.12	ATT construct reliability and AVE	73
3.13	COM construct reliability and AVE	74
3.14	BI construct reliability and AVE	76
3.15	LUF construct reliability and AVE	77
3.16	LUV construct reliability and AVE	78
3.17	M LMS Utilization construct reliability and AVE	79
3.18	Discriminant Validity	81
4.1	Respondents by Gender	85
4.2	Respondents by Age	86
4.3	Respondents by Levels of Academic Qualification	86
4.4	Respondents by Experience	86
4.5	Respondents by Workshop Attendance	86

 $\bigcirc$ 

4.6	Result of Performance Expectancy	88
4.7	Result of Effort Expectancy	88
4.8	Result of Social Influence	89
4.9	Result of Facilitating Conditions	90
4.10	Result of Attitude to Use M LMS	90
4.11	Result of Competence to use M LMS	91
4.12	Result of Behavioral Intention	92
4.13	Result of Frequency Level of M LMS Utilization (F M LMS)	92
4.14	Result of Volume Level of M LMS Utilization (V M LMS)	93
4.15	Result of Path Co-efficient	94
4.16	Decision Criteria for Mediation Effect	96
4.17	Result of Mediation Effect of PE on M LMS Utilization through BI	97
4.18	Result of Mediation Effect of EE on M LMS Utilization through BI	97
4.19	Result of Mediation Effect of SI on M LMS Utilization through BI	98
4.20	Result of Mediation Effect of FC on M LMS Utilization through BI	98
4.21	Result of Mediation Effect of ATT on M LMS Utilization through BI	99
4.22	Result of Mediation Effect of COM on M LMS Utilization through BI	99
4.23	Regression Weights: Full Mediation Model	100
4.24	CIMIN Value of the Model for Gender	101
4.25	Results of Moderation Effect of Gender with Individual Path	102
4.26	CIMIN Value of the Model for Age	104
4.27	Results of Moderation Effect of Gender with Individual path	105
4.28	Summary of Hypotheses	107

# LIST OF FIGURES

Figures		Page
2.1	Theoretical Framework	38
2.2	Unified Theory of Acceptance and Use of Technology (UTAUT)	39
2.3	Technology Acceptance Model (TAM)	40
2.4	Research Conceptual Framework	42
3.1	Location of the Study	46
3.2	Calculation of Sample Size using Raosoft® Software	48
3.3	Random Numbers Generated using StatTrek method (2012)	50
3.4	Results of the performance expectancy	56
3.5	Results of the effort expectancy	56
3.6	Results of the social influence	57
3.7	Results of the facilitating condition	57
3.8	Results of the attitudes	58
3.9	Results of the competence	58
3.10	Results of the behavioral intention	59
3.11	Results of the level of M LMS utilization	59
3.12	CFA of PE	69
3.13	CFA of EE	70
3.14	CFA of SI	71
3.15	CFA of FC	72
3.16	CFA of ATT	73
3.17	CFA of COM	75
3.18	CFA of BI	76

G

3.19	CFA for Level of Utilization Frequency (LUF)	77
3.20	CFA for Level of Utilization Volume (LUV)	78
3.21	CFA of M LMS Utilization	79
3.22	Overall Measurement Model	80
3.23	Mediating Model	82
4.1	Structural Model	95
4.2	Mediation Effect	96
4.3	Final M LMS Utilization Model	100

 $\bigcirc$ 

# LIST OF ABBREVIATIONS

AGFI	Adjusted Goodness of Fit
ATT	Attitude to Use M LMS
AVE	Average Variance Extracted
BI	behavioral intention
CFA	Confirmatory factor Analysis
CFI	Comparative Fit Index
СОМ	Competency to Use M LMS
CR	construct reliability
EDA	Exploratory data analysis
EE	Effort Expectancy
FC	Facilitating Conditions
GFI	Goodness of Fit Index
ICT	information and communications technology
IDT	Innovation Diffusion Theory
IT	Information Technology
KSA	Kingdom of Saudi Arabia
LMS	Learning Management System
LUF	Level of Utilization Frequency
LUV	Level of Utilization Volume
Μ	Madrasati
MLE	maximum likelihood estimation
MM	Motivation Model
MPCU	PC Usage Modelling
NCeL	National Centre for e-Learning and Distance Learning
NFI	Normed Fit Index
NTP	National Transformation Program
PE	Performance Expectancy
PEU	perceived ease of use
PU	perceived usefulness
RMSEA	Root Mean Square of Error Approximation
SCT	Social Cognitive Theory
SEM	Structural Equation Modeling

Social Influence
Technology Acceptance Model
Tucker-Lewis Index
Theory of Planned Behavior
Theory of Reasoned Action
Unified Theory of Acceptance and Use of Technology



 $\bigcirc$ 

#### **CHAPTER 1**

#### INTRODUCTION

#### 1.1 Background of the Study

The world is progressively becoming a global village where everything is being digitalized. Nowadays, almost everything is computerized, and daily practices have shifted from manual to electronic, from conventional to face-to-face, and from traditional learning to e-learning (Gunasinghe et al., 2019; Hadoussa, 2020). Technology eases vigorous tasks by computerizing manual processes and fully automating them (Ling et al., 2020). The education system is also being influenced by technology; for instance, many schools' admission and registration processes are being carried out electronically. Classroom teaching and learning are now being gradually digitalized and revolutionized to fit and meet the needs of modern society, students, and teachers' modes of thinking and lifestyles (Olugbara et al., 2020). Breakthroughs in global technology have changed education and made teaching and learning easier. Its importance is progressively increasing in the education sector. In this regard, technological advances undoubtedly benefit both teachers and learners (Albaqami, 2019).

Today, technology is integrated into the school curricula, syllabuses, and courses; consequently, teachers and students get accustomed to computers and software applications in schools (Alwahoub et al., 2020). Teachers use the internet and other technological platforms to instruct and evaluate students (McCord, 2018). Technology offers confidence and assurance, apart from easing and improving the teaching and learning processes. Advancement in the education sector could help teachers become conversant with the required knowledge via optimal technology utilization (Woodruff & Heidi Wagner, 2020). Thus, educational technology can support teachers in the classroom by making strenuous and less practical activities possible in fashionable ways in schools. Furthermore, the increasing utilization of educational technology could help students understand the learning content and perform better in the classroom through computerized presentation (Alzahrani & Althaqafi, 2020).

Educational technology has continuously been used in Kingdom of Saudi Arabia (KSA) at all educational stages, from primary school to university (Alahmari & Kyei-Blankson, 2018). Between 2007 and 2019, the Saudi government has made massive investments in the education sector to develop it (Alsaleh, 2019). The government introduced electronic devices to facilitate teaching and provided training for teachers to ensure the effective utilization of information and communications technology (ICT) in education (Al-Sharhan et al., 2020).

As part of the educational technology and ICT initiative, the learning management system (LMS) was adopted in Saudi Arabia through the Ministry of Education (MOE) in 1990 (Aldiab et al., 2019). An LMS is a piece of software or web-based technology that is used to organize, carry out, and evaluate a particular learning activity. Since 2018,

the Saudi government has implemented the LMS in public and private schools across the Kingdom (Aljaber, 2018; Alkinani & Alzahrani, 2021). The LMS represents the zenith of 21st century technology and digital advancement, which is deemed a massive undertaking in the K-12 education system in KSA (Al Ohali et al., 2018). The fundamental purpose of implementing LMS in K–12 public schools is to influence students' lives by learning at their own pace while encouraging peer interaction through the teachers' guide. Prior to the COVID-19 pandemic, the majority of schools did not, however, holistically adopt the LMS system as a cutting-edge teaching and learning strategy (Almaiah et al., 2022).

Madrasati was first introduced in 2020, following the COVID-19 pandemic lockdown in KSA, as part of the LMS (known as M LMS) to encourage delivery of teaching and learning as well as promote technology and e-learning utilization in the Kingdom. The Saudi Arabian Ministry of Education launched the Madrasati platform as the new entry point for distance teaching and learning for all Saudi educational levels, from kindergarten through K-12 (Alroqi, 2021). This M LMS introduction is part of the Ministry of Education goals within the KSA Vision 2030 that focus on bringing significant digital transformation in teaching and learning. M LMS was launched as inclusive of the Future Gate initiative integrated into LMS for all public schools in Saudi Arabia (Masmali, 2020). When M LMS was launched, the morning periods were allocated to intermediate and secondary schools, while the afternoon periods were allocated to primary schools.

## 1.2 Technology in Education

Technology in education refers to the application of technology in education, including primary and secondary schools, colleges, and universities (Al Ohali et al., 2018; Mustapha et al., 2020). It has also been defined as the practical usage of knowledge in a specific area of endeavour (Selwyn, 2020). The term "technology" is also designated as a collection of practices and procedures. In line with this viewpoint, technology in this study refers to the most recent state of civilisation and knowledge on how to organize resources to produce desired outcomes, solve problems, and meet needs, including practical approaches, abilities, practices, talents, instruments, and raw materials (Cohen et al. 2020). Technology has also been widely described as material and immaterial objects based on intellectual, perceptual, and physical efforts to realise specific values (Hollands & Escueta, 2020). In this context, technology refers to instruments and devices which are not necessarily solid or physical, i.e., virtual technology, software, applications, and educational systems utilized to resolve real-human difficulties and challenges (Sweller, 2020).

To most educators, technology in education signifies the utilization of computers, mainframes, and electronic hardware and software for instructional purposes (Domingo & Garganté, 2016). The term symbolizes both a process and a device that teachers utilize in teaching. The Association for Educational Communications and Technology (AECT) Bloomington mentioned that "technology in education is a complex, integrated process involving people, procedures, ideas, devices, and organizations for analyzing problems

and devising, implementing, evaluating, and managing solutions to these problems, in situations in which learning is purposeful and controlled" (Almutairi, 2020, p. 5).

Hence, technology in education concerns using technology to help students learn about the practices and knowledge associated with technology through teachers' involvement. Using devices and systems entails the human capacity to shape and transform the world to meet human desires by deploying resources and devices to that effect using skills (Alrashoud, 2020). Technology in education resolves detachment between broad utilization and the lack of knowledge regarding practical modules of technologies in use. Several different technology applications in education are encouraging. These applications vary from utilising technology as an instrument to support the traditional teaching model to completely high-tech piloted tools. Upon this view, numerous students in schools (e.g., Saudi Arabia) have shown improved performance after using technology in classrooms (Cohen et al., 2020). Technology permits learners to learn in a peaceful setting (Nyembezi & Bayaga, 2015; Balaman, 2020). In this sense, learners relate to "classroom knowledge" without interfering with founded measures of technological interaction (Olawale et al., 2020). Studies also found that it enables students to be trained by transforming them from weakness to strength. Technology helps the instructor assess skills reliably and purposefully. It also allows the repetition of integral classroom activities in an orderly manner, as encountered in real life (Domingo & Garganté, 2016). In summary, technology in education supports teaching and learning. It helps optimize learning through digital learning instruments, such as laptops and mobile devices, which increase access to learning materials and activities. It allows learning to occur 24 hours a day, seven days a week. A crucial positive influence of technology in education is that it brings students together via discussion and teamwork, which might never be possible if we had the chance to talk to or assist each other. Technology in education allows students to regulate their own time of learning. Students who need additional time can use more time to work on their assignments and access more supporting materials, while students who need less support can proceed with their learning. Technology in education assists students who need more support at the individual level. Finally, when teachers efficiently integrate technology into classrooms or schools, they assume the roles of mentors, content professionals, and instructors.

#### 1.2.1 Technology Utilization

Technology utilization profoundly influences schools' survival, especially in today's technology-reliant world where rapid and frequent technological transformations occur (Olawale et al., 2020; Al-Shehri, 2020). Technology use in the classroom can support students' understanding of instructions being delivered in the school (Supardi & Hasanah, 2020). For example, audio-visual materials presented through projectors allow the teachers to preview their notes and present learning content more efficiently. Studies have reported that various technologies are utilized to standardize the group of modules or instruction in classrooms. Such technologies provide teachers with simulations, demonstrations, assessments, and class activities to support the teaching process (Alshehri & Cumming, 2020).

Factors influencing technology utilization in education are also associated with teachers' perceptions. The teachers' beliefs, opinions, feelings, and considerations toward technology and their ability with technology have frequently been recognized as the main factors associated with technology utilization (Almutairi et al., 2020). Teachers' attitudes and teaching values or intentions in practice are additional factors that encourage the appropriate utilization of technology in education (Pangaribuan & Wulandari, 2018). The nature of the technology itself also affects its utilization by teachers (Akinrinola et al., 2020). In this regard, some teachers still have incongruous thoughts on the substantial impacts of technology in education (Sweller, 2020), causing them to hesitate to doubt and question technology's educational virtues.

The constantly changing technologies make it difficult for teachers to keep up with stateof-the-art trends in technology (Stella, 2020). At a regular interval, new hardware and software are emerging, and the teachers are finding it difficult and discouraging to continue adopting the strange innovations in technology (Ranellucci et al., 2020). Its volatility also makes the technology less glamorous, appealing, and interesting for most teachers owing to its variability and the constant training it requires to use. For instance, teachers with less time in class cannot spend that time troubleshooting devices or computer systems, which they may or may not be able to resolve. When there is no necessity for technology utilization with reliable support, teachers may choose not to use it in their teaching. Overall, despite the government's support for adopting technology, full technology adoption remains challenging in KSA. Technology utilization still needs to be increased to ensure large-scale adoption and implementation in the country, particularly in Riyadh. This shows that the teacher's role in the complete utilization of technology is very crucial in KSA.

## 1.2.2 Education and Technology in Riyadh of the KSA

In KSA, education is mandatory for all males and females from the age of seven. There are 30,625 schools across the KSA for both genders. Consistent with KSA culture and religion, the educational system adheres to gender-based schools (Wiseman et al., 2018; Binvamin et al., 2020). Moreover, there are two types of school systems: private and public. In private schools, students pay tuition fees, whereas education is free in public schools. Within the last two decades, education in the KSA has made momentous successes by concentrating on offering educational rights to all individuals, despite challenges posed by geographic locations and population growth (Pavan, 2013). Nowadays, education in the KSA is entering a new phase, focusing on the quality of education by ensuring that students across the nation, particularly in public schools, are well prepared to handle future challenges, including technology, cultural diversity, modernization, and globalization (Alamri, 2019). In line with this, educational technology development in the past decade is more apparent in three school levels in Riyadh, elementary (grades 1 to 6), intermediate (grades 7 to 9), and secondary (grades 10 to 12). The Kingdom can only achieve this by employing 21st-century skills while sustaining the values and codes of Saudi culture. In the continuous effort to develop the education system in KSA, the Ministry of Education launched a critical support project to develop the public education sector in the last decade (Ministry of Education, 2020a). The Ministry of Education has considered integrating technology into teaching and learning. In collaboration with Intel, it was developed in 2007 and concentrated on integrating all technologies into teaching and learning.

Riyadh is the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia's capital and financial hub. It has a population of 7.5 million and a 95.32% general literacy level, increasing by 7.84% annually (Peterson, 2020). It is the biggest city in the Arabian Peninsula and is counted among the world's fastest-emerging cities in terms of population (Aldubayan, 2020). This implies that Riyadh faces challenges in providing equal education opportunities for the fast-growing population.

Saudi Arabia has a total of 30,625 schools, of which 26 248 (86%) are public and 4,377 (14%) are private. Out of these, 4115 schools are located in Riyadh (Ministry of Education, 2019). In Rivadh and other KSA regions, primary education up to secondary school is open to every individual and is free. Children can attend kindergarten (preschool) systems based on parents' preferences. Each child in the KSA must enroll in primary school when they reach six. According to UNESCO, gross enrollment for boys is 99% and 96.3% for girls (Mahgoub, 2020). To be admitted into intermediate education, a student must pass the Grade 6 examination at primary school and get the Elementary Education Certificate. In the meantime, technological instructional structure varies based on the level of education. Many K-12 schools offer diverse curricula and extra-curricular activities to cater to the intellectual and physical needs of their students. Admissions to the best schools in Rivadh appear to have a long queue. Moreover, each school has ratings according to parent appraisals and is ranked below (Alrashoud, 2020). In general, schools in Riyadh are well-equipped and managed to provide children with high-quality education. Subsequently, schools in Riyadh offer excellent K-12 general education and are the foremost educational establishments in KSA.

The adoption of technology through e-learning, such as the Learning Management System (LMS), is increasing in Saudi Arabia's schools to cater to the growing student population (Saudi Arabia Ministry of Education, 2019). ICT use is commonly regarded as the most feasible answer to the present challenges posed by the increasing population in KSA. It could sustain the ever-increasing need for e-learning (Almutairi et al., 2020). A learning management system (LMS has been defined as a web-based technology that helps design, organize, deliver, and assess a particular learning process (Simanullang & Rajagukguk, 2020). It has also been defined as a technological solution that permits the delivery and management of content and resources to the instructors and students in schools (Al-Sharhan et al., 2020). It has been further described as a platform that helps teachers administer and consolidate instructional materials online and operate online courses (Elfeky et al., 2020). Mirzaei & Shabani Nia, 2020) have also been denoted as a virtual learning environment and a course management system that offer solutions and gains for both the teachers and learners in a more adaptable way (Mirzaei & Shabani Nia, 2020). Consistent with these definitions, this software application has a different feature that allows the learning process and its content to be more accessible and easier to manage. It also helps teachers share the learning resources and manage students' enrolment, record-keeping, and activities (Syaad & Hidayat, 2018; Al-Sharhan et al., 2020). Today, there are many forms of LMS used in Saudi Arabia, where some firms are in charge of privately-owned LMS (Mirzaei, 2020). They can have various advantages and are less complex than the free, open-source LMS.

#### 1.2.3 Madrasati (M) in KSA and its Usage during the COVID-19 Pandemic

The first LMS developed in Saudi Arabia is the Jusur LMS. It was developed in 2011 by the National Centre for e-Learning and Distance Learning (NCeL) in partnership with the Meteor group of companies in Malaysia (Asiri et al., 2012). Jusur LM was initially designed to be used in universities, not for public schools. For this reason, the Ministry of Education launched the Future Gate (FG) initiative to incorporate the LMS system into Saudi Arabia's public schools, which aligned with the Saudi Arabia Vision 2030. The launch made way for a substantial digital transformation in teaching and learning in K-12 education in the KSA. Madrasati is a kingdom-inclusive and large-scale LMS for all the public schools in Saudi Arabia (Al-Ohali et al., 2019; Masmali, 2020). It targets the adoption of LMS infrastructure within the classroom (Al-Ohali et al., 2018) and benefits over 5.9 million students and 500,000 teachers in 25,000 schools throughout the KSA as well as parents, principals, supervisors, and lawmakers (Al-Ohali et al., 2019). Teachers' usage of LMS technology supports students by creating networks across subject areas and choosing the optimal LMS tools for elaborating learning via activities. In this LMS technology, the teacher can also upload coursework, assignments, tasks, projects for the students, tests, requests, and examinations. Teachers can also interact with students and their parents through LMS technology to plan their weekly lesson plans. The LMS technology also allows teachers, students, and school management access to daily and weekly activities of learners' virtual classes (Al-Ohali et al., 2018; Ministry of Education, 2020a).

LMSs have gone through different developmental stages until their present form. The first LMS was FirstClass, introduced in 1990 (Aldiab et al., 2019). It was used to manage teaching and training through students' progress assessments. The LMS concept was more unclear before FirstClass LMS was introduced. Then, Blackboard LLC was introduced in 1997 by Michael Chasen and Matthew Pittinsk (Alkinani & Alzahrani, 2021). It is a course management system that delivers content instruction to students from a central location by allowing students to communicate effectively and allowing teachers to allocate grades. In 1999, Desire2Learn (D2L) was introduced by John Baker (Aldiab et al., 2019), which provides access to virtual learning online. In 2001, Moodle was introduced by Martin Dougiamas. In 2008, Canvas was founded by Josh Coates as a web-based LMS used by schools, educators, and students to access and manage online courses. Furthermore, Edmodo was founded in September 2008 to enable teachers to share content, tests, and tasks and manage communication with students, parents, and associates.

The LMS and Future Gate project, under the Kingdom's vision 2030, are essential to Riyadh schools' progress (Al-Ohali et al., 2019; Masmali, 2020). The Ministry of Education (MOE) Saudi Arabia has unveiled some educational projects to develop the country's education consistent with the Kingdom's vision 2030. The MOE is driving towards digital education via the Future Gate project. The goal is for the students to learn in a new technological environment to provide knowledge and improve scientific results. The 2030 vision encourages the development of teachers' scientific and educational capabilities (Alkinani & Alzahrani, 2021). The Future Gate project is associated with the sustainable objectives of attaining comprehensive, justifiable, and high-quality education

for all segments of the Kingdom to develop the human capital required to achieve sustainable education (Shishah, 2021).

Following COVID-19, the Ministry of Education updated the Future Gate e-learning system and named it Madrasati. This effort is concurrent with the closure of schools and educational institutions around the Kingdom to avoid spreading the COVID-19 virus (Aldossry, 2021). During this period, remote learning through virtual classrooms became a preventive action to safeguard teachers and students from COVID-19. The uncertainty of the virus at that time has caused schools to close indefinitely. Therefore, conducting virtual classes via the Future Gate e-learning system was the only option left during the period (Alubthane, 2021). Subsequently, MOE came up with the Madrasati Platform as an LMS facilitating teaching and learning in the Kingdom, particularly in schools in Riyadh (Aldossry, 2021). It turns out to be necessary for schools to adopt and utilize the Madrasati to teach courses (Alsalim, 2021). Simultaneously, teachers learned how to incorporate technology into their teaching (Shishah, 2021). The Microsoft Teams were utilized to operate the Madrasati (Oraif & Elyas, 2021). The virtual classroom is the same as the conventional classrooms regarding the number of teachers and students using the Madrasati. Consequently, schools began to utilize the Madrasati system and the different tools to conduct lessons via virtual classrooms and evaluate students' performance (Aldossry, 2021; Alubthane, 2021).

#### 1.3 Factors Influencing the Utilization of Madrasati

The LMS utilization in public schools is affected by teachers' behavior toward using technology in accomplishing tasks and the degree of its multiplicity utilization in other societies (Ministry of Education, 2019; Masmali, 2020). M LMS adoption and use among Saudi teachers can be linked to technology PE.In this regard, M LMS utilization among teachers in Saudi Arabia is still low. Many studies have used four core factors that directly determine technology acceptance (BI) and use (behavior), and these include PE, EE, SI, and FC (Onaolapo & Oyewole, 2018; Gunasinghe et al., 2019; Kułak et al., 2019). These factors are considered vital in measuring possible issues with new technology acceptance by school teachers in KSA, particularly in Riyadh (Alshehri et al., 2019). This study argues that behavioral intention affects teachers' attitudes toward new technology. The attitudes of Saudi teachers towards the utilization of M LMS entail the success of its implementation across public schools in Saudi Arabia. Teachers' attitudes toward acceptance to using M LMS are directly linked to the Unified Theory of Acceptance and Use of Technology (UTAUT). Within UTAUT, studies have established a significant relationship between FC and BI (Alshehri, Rutter, & Smith, 2019). Thus, BI factors need to be quantitatively measured to fully comprehend these behaviors involving teachers' intention toward LMS technology acceptance in Riyadh (Chao, 2019; Funmilola et al., 2019).

Due to the integration of LMS technology and its utilization in public schools among teachers, the beliefs and attitudes of teachers towards teaching and learning have constantly been considered crucial norms for its effective implementation in Riyadh (Ghavifekr et al., 2016; Almarri et al., 2019). Teachers' attitudes toward new technology are critical factors associated with the initial acceptance of LMS technology and future

behavior concerning LMS utilization. Teachers' behavior can be expressed as individuals' behavior or actions as they engage in aspects required to facilitate learning (Al-Shehri, 2017). This process has its origin in intrinsic belief and intention in the learning event. Teachers' knowledge is also linked to their attitude toward technology, such as adopting or rejecting it in teaching and learning (Urhahne, 2015). They established the belief that attitudes influence behaviors (Olugbara et al., 2020). Teachers' attitudes have been identified as the main predictor of the new technological utilization in the school context. Positive attitudes could motivate less technologically proficient teachers to learn the essential skills to use technology in teaching (Heyder et al., 2020). Attitudes shaped by intention are crucial for teachers' technology acceptance in Riyadh. Some school teachers in KSA are slow in accepting M LMS because they believe the technology may not fit well with their micro-or macro-performance and expectations (Masmali, 2020). In line with this, M LMS focuses on social factors and, more particularly, how teachers interact with LMS technology and the environment (e.g., Riyadh), representing their BI toward such interaction.

Moreover, BI toward LMS technology acceptance, adoption, and implementation can be measured by observational tools. These tools quantitatively capture these factors and how they affect teachers' teaching performance in public schools (Alahmari & Kyei-Blankson, 2016; Chao, 2019). The quantitative measurements, such as quantifying school teachers' preferences, attitudes, facts, and behaviors, can generalize outcomes from a larger teacher population in Riyadh. In this approach, it is possible to recognize, regulate, and manipulate particular outcomes of the teaching process by altering selected aspects of a teacher's explicit behavior, which can be quantitatively measured, such as PE, EE, SI, and FC. Teaching can be regarded as a cluster of distinct behaviors. Hence, alterations in one or more of these behaviors are presumed to affect teaching quality (Al-Shehri, 2017; Alnahdi, 2020). It could be argued that teaching behavior or BI is independent of the curricular background associated with the techniques (Elashhab, 2020).

Competence in the potential use of new technology, such as LMS, affects its adoption in schools (Kristiawan, 2020). Competence plays a significant role in computer learning and skills. The computer assists educators in facilitating learning by training them to be competent and even to motivate and accelerate students' learning. However, some teachers lack the competence to operate or use new technology in schools and colleges (Tran, 2020). These challenges include a lack of adequate competence, skills, and understanding of basic operating procedures of the new technology; for example, the LMS implementations in schools (Poulter & Cook, 2020; Siri et al., 2020). In addition to how technology can be utilized in the classroom to assist students in effectively learning their modules, The teachers' competencies to effectively handle computer-related technology have become crucial for the successful implementation of new technology at all levels of education, especially in the case of Saudi Arabia.

 $\bigcirc$ 

BI signifies a person's deliberate intention to be involved in a particular action (Sánchez-Prieto et al., 2017). In the current study, BI denotes how teachers perceive that they intend to utilize technology in education constantly. It is hypothesized as a mediator between examined factors (PE, EE, SI, FC, ATT, and COM) towards M LMS utilization. The moderating role of age and gender has been previously used by studies (Mahdi & Al-Dera, 2013; Al-Hunaiyyan et al., 2020) to examine the relationship between variables of technological utilization concerning teachers' attitudes and behavior. A moderator is a third variable that impacts the strength of the relationship between a dependent and an independent variable. In this study, age and gender are variables that moderate the influence of BI toward the utilization of M LMS among teachers in Saudi public schools. Binyamin et al. (2020) have prior explored the moderating effects of gender and age on the students' acceptance of LMS in Saudi higher education. There is no study available in Saudi about the teachers' attitudes towards utilising M LMS in schools. Since age and gender can moderate the influence of factors (PE, EE, SI, FC, attitudes, and competence to use M) on M LMS utilization among Saudi teachers, the need to examine this relationship in the context of Saudi Arabia.

#### 1.4 Statement of the Problem

In KSA, implementing modern technology into teaching and learning is essential, such as M LMS. However, M LMS is still not widely accepted or used among school teachers in KSA, especially in Riyadh (Masmali, 2020; Alkinani & Alzahrani, 2021). Since its launch in 2020, the M LMS has recently been implemented across Saudi schools, with inadequate levels of teacher and student engagement (Shishah, 2021; Almaiah et al., 2022). Research on the influence of UTAUT factors on M LMS acceptance and utilization in Riyadh's primary and secondary schools is scant or nonexistent.

Studies have indicated problems regarding the acceptance and utilization of new LMS technology in Saudi Arabia. Scherer et al. (2019) assessed the teachers' acceptance and adoption of digital new technology in education in Riyadh using the UTAUT. They found that the teachers had an adverse interest and intention towards new technology adoption in Riyadh because they felt it might not serve their future interests. Similarly, Almutairi et al. (2020) applied the UTAUT model to evaluate teachers' behavioral motivation toward technology acceptance and utilization in KSA. They discovered that teachers participated in technological use when they saw the importance and benefits of using such technology in their teaching career and teaching process. The UTAUT showed the effect of intention to accept and use technology (i.e., PE, EE, SI, and FC) on usage behavior (intention to use). However, many of the studies above did not examine the influence of PE, EE, SI, and FC on M LMS. The studies focused on other types of LMS, such as Classera. Based on the outcome of these studies, it appears that the role of teacher BI and utilization of M LMS does not exist in Riyadh and the influence of M LMS in classrooms is not clear. Therefore, it needs to be studied further.

Alshehri et al. (2020) uncovered the effects of UTAUT and usability qualities on students' use of LMS in Saudi tertiary education. The outcomes supported the UTAUT parameters' reliability and validity in the Saudi Arabian LMS setting. However, the study suggested that the teacher's intention and usage behavior based on UTAUT (PE, EE, SI, and FC) can be investigated by future study as a connection exists between the students' usage of LMS and the teacher's BI toward utilization because it's influenced by the social impact dimension. Research has indicated that BI is a mediating factor influencing technology utilization (Bervell et al., 2020; Agarwal, 2020). These studies showed that

new technology utilization has no significant effect on BI as a mediator. However, Singh and Sinha (2020) proved that new technology utilization significantly affects BI. The mediating role of intention is crucial as it assists in understanding the effect between technological origin and acceptance in particular contexts, such as schools in Riyadh. Similarly, Shah et al. (2021) proved that BI can mediate between technology and teachers' acceptance. Moreover, Bervell et al. (2020) showed that LMS-enabled blended learning use intentions in distance education can mediate the role of attitude based on technology-related stimulus-response. To summarize, the BI toward technology or LMS acceptance and utilization has the potential to influence teachers' teaching attitudes. This attitude can further shape their intention to use technology in the classroom.

According to Watson et al. (2020), teachers' attitudes are what prevent the incorporation of digital technology in teaching and learning since they are most frequently misinterpreted, misunderstood, and misconstrued. The rate of acceptance and utilization of 2.0 LMS technology in KSA is impacted by teachers' inadequate background knowledge and technological ability (Almutairi et al., 2020; Alghamdi & Holland, 2020). A scarcity of technological competence can hamper creative abilities (Kristiawan, 2020). The lack of technical competence of the teachers has been found to directly affect the achievement of the students in the learning environment, such as reducing their participation and demoralizing them from engaging with the new technology actively. Many factors might have contributed to teachers' shortage of technological utilization competence and integration in classrooms in Riyadh. example, According to Alghamdi and Holland (2020), a fundamental obstacle to properly integrating technology into teaching is that teachers are only permitted to participate in the implementation stage of projects involving instructional technology (such as M LMS). Granero-Gallegos (2020) found that teachers continue to be underrepresented in the planning of newly introduced technology in their classrooms at all levels, thereby disrupting the teachers' behavior, competence, and enthusiasm profiles. In a similar vein, several researchers have revealed that teachers lacked the MLMS technology abilities necessary for them to manage their teaching and learning efficiently (Alkinani & Alzahrani, 2021; Aldossry, 2021; Almaiah et al., 2022). In conclusion, lack of involvement in planning the new technology affects teachers' acceptance of newly introduced technology directly, which in turn affects their competencies in the newly introduced technology, such as M LMS. Lack of competency in using M LMS is one of the identified issues in Riyadh and Saudi Arabia in general.

In addition, the demographic factor, which includes age and gender, is another component that has the potential to moderate how much teachers use new technology. Consistent with this, Binyamin et al. (2020) found that age, gender, and experience negatively moderate technology usage among EFL teachers. However, some studies have found that gender and age have a moderating effect on technology use (Wiseman et al., 2018; Al-Hunaiyyan et al., 2020). This indicated inconsistencies in terms of the effect of age and gender on new technology adoptions and acceptances in the classroom, particularly in Riyadh or KSA.

Based on these knowledge gaps, including a lack of defined intention of teachers towards new technological adoption and utilization, insufficient evidence on how PE, EE, SI, FC, ATT, and COM may affect the teachers' utilization of M LMS in public schools, there is no clear evidence on how these factors (PE, EE, SI, FC, ATT, and COM) may affect the teachers' intentions and utilization of M LMS technology in Riyadh. In addition, the lack of some FC in public schools in Riyadh could affect M LMS utilization among teachers. Therefore, there is a need for a study to examine the factors influencing teachers' BI and utilization of M LMS in Saudi public schools.

### 1.5 Objectives of the Study

This study investigates the factors influencing teachers' behavioral intentions and Madrasati (M) utilization in Saudi public schools. Therefore, the study was conducted to achieve the following objectives:

- 1. To determine teachers' performance expectancy, effort expectancy, social influence, facilitating conditions, attitude to use M LMS, competency to use M LMS, and behavioral intention toward M LMS utilization among teachers in Saudi public schools in Riyadh.
- 2. To determine whether performance expectancy, effort expectancy, facilitating conditions, social influence, attitude to use M LMS, competency to use M LMS, and behavioral intention significantly influence the utilization of M LMS among teachers in Saudi public schools in Riyadh.
- 3. To determine the mediating role of behavioral intention on relationships between performance expectancy, effort expectancy, facilitating conditions, social influence, attitude to use M LMS, competency to use M LMS, and M LMS utilization among teachers in Saudi public schools in Riyadh.
- 4. To determine the moderating role of gender and age on the utilization of M LMS among the teachers in Saudi public schools in Riyadh.

#### 1.6 Research Questions

These research questions were formulated based on the first research objective (RO1).

- 1. What is the level of M LMS utilization among the teachers in Saudi public schools in Riyadh?
- 2. What is the performance expectancy of utilizing M LMS among the teachers in Saudi public schools in Riyadh?
- 3. What is the effort expectancy of M LMS utilization among the teachers in Saudi public schools in Riyadh?
- 4. What is the social influence of M LMS utilization among the teachers in Saudi public schools in Riyadh?

- 5. What are the facilitating conditions for M LMS utilization among the teachers in Saudi public schools in Riyadh?
- 6. What is the attitude to use M LMS of M LMS utilization among the teachers in Saudi public schools in Riyadh?
- 7. What are the competencies to use M LMS of M LMS utilization among the teachers in Saudi public schools in Riyadh?
- 8. What is the behavioral intention of M LMS utilization among the teachers in Saudi public schools in Riyadh?

#### 1.7 Research Hypotheses

## **Objective 2**

The second objective is to determine whether performance expectancy, effort expectancy, facilitating conditions, social influence, attitude to use M LMS, competency to use M LMS, and behavioral intention significantly influence the utilization of M LMS among teachers in Saudi public schools in Riyadh. The researcher has formulated the following hypotheses:

H1: There is a direct effect of performance expectancy on M LMS utilization among teachers in Saudi public schools in Riyadh.

**H2:** There is a direct effect of effort expectancy on M LMS utilization among teachers in Saudi public schools in Riyadh.

**H3:** There is a direct effect of social influence on M LMS utilization among teachers in Saudi public schools in Riyadh.

**H4** There is a direct effect of facilitating conditions on M LMS utilization among teachers in Saudi public schools in Riyadh.

**H5:** There is a direct effect of attitudes on M LMS utilization among teachers in Saudi public schools in Riyadh.

**H6:** There is a direct effect of competence on M LMS utilization among teachers in Saudi public schools in Riyadh.

**H7:** There is a direct effect of behavioral intention on M LMS utilization among teachers in Saudi public schools in Riyadh.

#### **Objective 3**

to determine the mediating role of behavioral intention on relationships between performance expectancy, effort expectancy, facilitating conditions, social influence, attitude to use M LMS, competency to use M LMS, and M LMS utilization among teachers in Saudi public schools in Riyadh., the researcher has made the following hypotheses:

**H8:** Behavioral intention mediates the performance expectancy of M LMS utilization among teachers in Saudi public schools in Riyadh.

**H9:** Behavioral intention mediates the effort expectancy on M LMS utilization among teachers in Saudi public schools in Riyadh.

**H10:** Behavioral intention mediates the facilitating conditions for M LMS utilization among teachers in Saudi public schools in Riyadh.

**H11:** Behavioral intention mediates the social influence on M LMS utilization among teachers in Saudi public schools in Riyadh.

**H12:** Behavioral intention mediates the attitude to use MLMS of M LMS utilization among teachers in Saudi public schools in Riyadh.

**H13:** Behavioral intention mediates the competency to use MLMS of M LMS utilization among teachers in Saudi public schools in Riyadh.

#### **Objective 4**

The fourth research objective is to determine the moderating effect of gender on the determinants of utilization of M LMS and its adoption by teachers in Saudi public schools in Riyadh. The researcher has made the following hypothesis:

**H14**: Gender moderates the influence of performance expectancy on M LMS utilization among teachers in Saudi public schools in Riyadh.

**H15**: Gender moderates the influence of effort expectancy on M LMS utilization among teachers in Saudi public schools in Riyadh.

**H16**: Gender moderates social influence on M LMS utilization among teachers in Saudi public schools in Riyadh.

**H17**: Gender moderates the influence of facilitating conditions on M LMS utilization among teachers in Saudi public schools in Riyadh.

**H18**: Gender moderates the influence of attitude to use M LMS on M LMS utilization among teachers in Saudi public schools in Riyadh.

**H19**: Gender moderates the influence of competency to use M LMS on M LMS utilization among teachers in Saudi public schools in Riyadh.

**H20**: Age moderates the influence of performance expectancy on M LMS utilization among teachers in Saudi public schools in Riyadh.

**H21**: Age moderates the influence of effort expectancy on M LMS utilization among teachers in Saudi public schools in Riyadh.

**H22**: Age moderates social influence on M LMS utilization among teachers in Saudi public schools in Riyadh.

**H23**: Age moderates the influence of facilitating conditions on M LMS utilization among teachers in Saudi public schools in Riyadh.

**H24**: Age moderates the influence of attitude to use M LMS on M LMS utilization among teachers in Saudi public schools in Riyadh.

**H25**: Age moderates the influence of competency to use M LMS on M LMS utilization among teachers in Saudi public schools in Riyadh.

In order to summarize the research objectives, questions, and hypotheses developed for this study, this study investigates the factors influencing teachers' BI and M LMS utilization in Saudi public schools. The aim of the study is to determine whether PE, EE, SI, ATT, COM, and BI significantly influence the utilization of Madrasati. The study attempts to answer the question: what is the level of M LMS utilization among the teachers in Saudi public schools in Riyadh? The researcher hypotheses attempt to validate whether there is a direct effect of PE, EE, SI, FC, ATT, COM, and BI on M LMS utilization among teachers in public schools in Riyadh (in line with Objective 2). BI mediates the relationship between PE, EE, SI, FC, ATT, COM, and utilization of M LMS among teachers in Saudi public schools in Riyadh (in line with Objective 3). Gender and age moderate the influence of PE, EE, SI, FC, ATT, and COM on M L MSM utilization among teachers in Saudi public schools in Riyadh (in line with Objective 4).

## 1.8 Significance of the Study

The findings of this study are essential in increasing the utilization level of M LMS among Saudi teachers. Moreover, the findings will provide helpful information for the M administration on encouraging the teachers to utilize the M LMS and how to solve the problems facing the M LMS. It is expected to add to the literature concerning the usage of M LMS among teachers. The findings will also provide comprehensive information for the researchers in generating more research concerning the teachers' utilization of M LMS in learning. In addition, the results of this study will assist in developing and supporting strategies for increasing M LMS use among Saudi teachers.

Based on the findings of this study, decision-makers can take the necessary steps to remove the obstacles, encourage positive factors, and design training programs to improve M LMS use among teachers. It will also enrich the theoretical knowledge of M LMS utilization in Saudi education and help educational decision-makers in the development and improvement stages to achieve successful implementation of learning with M LMS. The stakeholders will be informed on the status of M LMS use and the possible barriers to employing it in learning. Therefore, this study is critical because it will support effective planning decisions regarding the future utilization of M LMS in education.

The findings will also benefit the Saudi education system, which may lead to and motivate a specific technology. This effort should enable them to meet the goals of Saudi's Vision 2030. It can also be helpful for the future development of the education system in Saudi to maximize the positive impacts of LMS on the learning environment and change the way teachers interact. Finally, the findings of this study will also serve as relevant material for students of ICT, education technology, and E-learning.

#### 1.9 Scope and Limitation of the Study

This study investigates the factors (PE, EE, FC, SI, ATT and COM) influencing teachers' BI and utilization of M LMS in Saudi Arabia. The scope of this covers and focuses on teachers' utilization of M LMS in a public school in Riyadh. There are various types of LMS available, including Moodle, Classera, ITWorx and Microsoft Teams. Schools in Riyadh commonly use Microsoft Teams, which further limits this study's scope to this Microsoft Teams, limiting the generalization of the findings to other related cities within Saudi Arabia that are using different LMS tools. In this study, the data was collected via a set of questionnaires by relying on the teachers' perceptions rather than the schools or the students. The participants of this study are full-time teachers, not part-time teachers who are exempt.

The selected population is limited only to teachers in Riyadh public schools. The teachers were also assured that their responses were confidential. The results may also not be generalized to all the Saudi teacher population but only to specific groups with similar characteristics. Despite these limitations, the results of this study are subject to further research and justification.

#### 1.10 Definition of Key Terms

This section presents the operational and conceptual definitions of relevant terms based on the literature to give clear comprehension and direction.

#### 1.10.1 Performance Expectancy

PE is defined here as "the degree to which an individual believes that using the system will help him or she attain gains in job performance" (Venkatesh et al., 2003, p. 447). In this study, PE refers to how teachers perceive the utilization of M LMS as a valuable tool helping them better increase their performance while carrying out their educational tasks in schools,

### 1.10.2 Effort Expectancy

EE can be defined as "the degree of ease associated with the use of the system" (Venkatesh et al., 2003, p. 448). Moreover, Nyembezi and Bayaga (2015) described it as a user free from struggle or effort of use. In this study, EE symbolises the degree to which school teachers perceive that utilising the M LMS will be easy to use or the ease of use of the M LMS tool.

#### 1.10.3 Social Influence

SI is a construct derived from the Unified Theory of Acceptance and Use of Technology. Venkatesh et al. (2003) define SI as the degree to which an individual perceives that "important others believe" (for example, family and friends) they should use technology. It is also referred to as the transformation in an individual's behavior due to others, deliberately or voluntarily. It is related to how people perceive themselves in relation to the enhancer, other people, and people (Zimmermann, 2020). In this study, SI refers to how the school teachers perceive social norms and values from other educators, colleagues, and families capable of enhancing their decision on using the M LMS.

#### 1.10.4 Facilitating Conditions

FC can be defined as "the degree to which an individual believes that an organizational and technical infrastructure exists to support the use of the system" (Venkatesh et al., 2003, p. 453, p. 453). It is also expressed how certain conditions support or boost the utilization of technology via exemplars, e.g. teachers (Peñarroja et al., 2019; Emstad & Sandvik, 2020).

In this study, FC refers to how teachers perceive the presence of available conditions that support their learning process. This support could be technical assistance and workshops to help in solving a problem related to the use of M LMS.

## 1.10.5 Attitude to Use M LMS

An attitude is a disposition to react regularly or hostilely to a particular individual (Thomas et al., 2020). It is a way of sensing or acting toward an individual, thing, or condition (Watson et al., 2020). It has also been referred to as an attitude, as a set of impressions and propensities that encourage an individual's judgment towards people, thoughts, or entities (Nilsson, 2018). These impressions and propensities can be positive or negative towards entities or individuals.

In this study, "attitude to use M LMS" refers to the teachers' combination of feelings, opinions, and tendency to utilize M LMS in teaching practices. This attitude will be assessed in three constructs: affective, cognitive, and behavior.

#### 1.10.6 Competency to Use M LMS

Competence is defined as the capability of adopting and using a specific technology effectively by gaining knowledge through extensive testing and learning in its research, development, and learning (Chi et al., 2020; Tran, 2020). In this study, competence refers to teachers' ability to effectively use all the selected features of the LMS, which include 18 tools, namely my data tool, study schedule tool, student tool, courses and resources tool, lessons tool, my courses tool, test tool, question bank tool, enrichment bank tool, assignment tool, learning paths tool, community communication tool, survey manager tool, announcements tool, public meetings tool, student inquiries tool, reports and statistics tool, and virtual classroom tool.

#### 1.10.7 Behavioral Intention

BI is described as how difficult individuals are ready to attempt and how much fortitude they are preparing to exert to execute a behavior (Ouyang et al., 2020). It denotes how individuals intend to make sustainable use of technology (Chao, 2019). It also expresses an individual's deliberate intent to accomplish a specific task (Pangaribuan & Wulandari, 2018).

In this study, BI signifies the extent to which the school teachers perceive their intentions of utilising M LMS constantly and attending workshops shortly. This study hypothesizes BI as a mediator between all selected factors (PE, EE, FC, SI, ATT, and COM) towards M LMS utilization.

#### 1.10.8 M LMS Utilization

The MOE launched M LMS because of the decision by the Saudi government to close schools in the Kingdom (Frad & Jedidi, 2022). The initial plan was for schools to utilize the Madrasati for the initial seven weeks in 2020, but as COVID-19 persisted, the MOE declared that schools would continue utilizing the Madrasati. The M LMS is an elearning system with several tools that reinforce all educational levels' teaching and learning processes (Shishah, 2021). Moreover, it helps students acquire knowledge, skills, standards, and understanding, simultaneously keeping them up to date with new technology needs in the present and future (Alkinani & Alzahrani, 2021).

The M LMS features a virtual classroom, allowing teachers and students to meet through virtual conferences and recorded sessions. The M LMS also allows access to educational content, including notes, reports, videos, and sketches (Alsalim, 2021). Additionally, M

LMS contains instruments associated with lesson preparation and strategy, allowing teachers to scheme lessons considering the students' needs and challenges (Aldossry, 2021). This includes teachers designing assignments and exams utilising this system. The M LMS uses Microsoft Teams for communication among students, teachers, and parents.

Toward the end of 2020, the M LMS enabled over 88,000 virtual lessons for both private and public schools in Saudi Arabia (Alsalim, 2021). Within the M LMS platform, teachers have designed nearly 3 million e-exams utilising this system, and students have submitted over 14.9 million tasks with over 9.8 million questions to their teachers (Alubthane, 2021). Madrasati's features and performance are similar to Moodle, Blackboard, and Canvas (Alkinani & Alzahrani, 2021).

Researchers assert that both frequency of use and volume of use might be used to determine the real usage of a technology (Asiri, Bakar, & Ayub, 2012). These two metrics are dependent on how frequently and in what volume the technology is used.

The term "frequency of LMS utilization" describes how frequently a user has used a system over time (e.g., using LMS twice per week; Asiri, Bakar, & Ayub, 2012), which also symbolizes how frequently teachers use technology (Cha, 2010). As a result, the frequency of M LMS use may be related to favorable opinions of e-learning in general. For instance, instructors who accept the M LMS may be more inclined to use it frequently than those who follow more traditional ideas.

The term "volume of LMS utilization" describes how much time a user spends using a system during a given time frame (Asiri, Bakar, & Ayub, 2012). Volume is the total number of logins the teachers make to the M LMS on a weekly basis. As a result, the volume will reflect the amount of time teachers spend using M LMS.

#### 1.10.9 Learning Management System

A learning management system (LMS) is a software application for the administration, documentation, tracking, reporting, automation, and delivery of educational courses, training programs, or learning and development programs (Ellis, 2009). The learning management system concept emerged directly from e-Learning. Alternatively, a learning management system (LMS) is software that is explicitly designed to create, distribute, and manage the delivery of educational content (Mahnegar, 2012).

In the context of this study, LMS is a software application used to facilitate the implementation and administration of virtual classrooms and learning programs in public schools in Riyadh.

#### 1.11 Summary

The background of this study is explained in this chapter, focusing on current literature on the utilization of LMS. Generally, the LMS is discussed with specific emphasis on the Madrasati LMS. It concisely stressed the advantages of its usage and the immense revolution in technology it sparked. It presents the current understanding that helps teachers achieve the best in its adoption and utilization in learning, especially in K-12 education.

This chapter has provided a concise introduction of M LMS, including its objectives, impact during COVID-19, utilization, and effect on Saudi public schooling in Riyadh. It has also briefly discussed M LMS utilization factors such as PE, EE, FC, SI, attitude, competence to utilize M LMS, BI, gender, and age. Consistent with these factors mentioned above, four research objectives were set.

- 1. To determine the PE, EE, SI, FC, ATT, COM, BI, and M LMS utilization of teachers.
- 2. To determine whether PE, EE, SI, FC, ATT, COM, and BI significantly influence the utilization of M LMS among teachers.
- 3. To determine the mediating role of BI in the relationship between (PE, EE, SI, FC, ATT, and COM) and utilization of M LMS among teachers.
- 4. To determine the moderating role of gender and age in the utilization of M LMS among the teachers.

Eight research questions were formulated alongside 25 research hypotheses based on these objectives. Numerous rationales and limitations of the study were addressed. Lastly, the key terms employed in this study were defined to give a clear understanding and guidance for the study. Consequently, the critical literature are reviewed and discussed in the next chapter.

#### REFERENCES

- Abdel-Hassan, R. A. H. S. (2020). Attitudes of Physics Students in the College of Basic Education towards the Use of an Open-Source E-Learning Management System (Moodle) and Its Relationship to Some Variables. *Journal of Talent Development* and Excellence, 12(3s), 2514-2534. DOI:https://doi.org/10.5430/ijhe.v10n2p1
- Abed, S., Alyahya, N., Altameem, A. (2020). IoT in Education: Its Impacts and Its Future in Saudi Universities and Educational Environments. In: Luhach, A., Kosa, J., Poonia, R., Gao, XZ., Singh, D. (eds) First International Conference on Sustainable Technologies for Computational Intelligence. Advances in Intelligent Systems and Computing, vol 1045. Springer, Singapore. https://doi.org/10.1007/978-981-15-0029-9 5
- Abubakar, F. M., & Ahmad, H. B. (2013). The moderating effect of technology awareness on the relationship between UTAUT constructs and behavioral intention to use technology: A conceptual paper. *Australian Journal of Business* and Management Research, 3(2), 14-23. DOI:https://doi.org/10.52283/NSWRCA.AJBMR.20130302A02
- Ahmed, R. R., Štreimikienė, D., & Štreimikis, J. (2022). The extended UTAUT model and learning management system during COVID-19: evidence from PLS-SEM and conditional process modeling. *Journal of Business Economics and Management*, 23(1), 82-104. DOI:https://doi.org/10.3846/jbem.2021.15664
- Akinrinola, A. A., Adebayo, S. B., Onakpoya, L. U., & Nwaozuru, U. C. (2020). Toward Culturally-Inclusive Educational Technology in a Globalized World. In *The Roles of Technology and Globalization in Educational Transformation* (pp. 177-194). Global. DOI:10.4018/978-1-5225-9746-9.ch014
- Al Mulhem, A. (2020). Exploring the Key Factors in the Use of an E-Learning System Among Students at King Faisal University, Saudi Arabia. DOI:https://doi.org/10.3991/ijim.v14i03.11576
- Al Ohali, Y., Al Suhaibani, A., Palavitsinis, N., & Koutoumanos, A. (2018). Digital transformation of education in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia: deploying a country-wide Learning Management System for K-12 education. In 17th European Conference on e-Learning, Athens, Greece (pp. 1-2).
- Al Saif, A. A. (2005). The motivating and inhibiting factors affecting the use of webbased instruction at the University of Qassim in Saudi Arabia. Available from ProQuest Dissertations & Theses Global. https://www.proquest.com/dissertations-theses/motivating-inhibiting-factorsaffecting-use-web/docview/305412818/se-2?accountid=27931
- Alahmari, A., & Kyei-Blankson, L. (2016). Adopting and implementing an e-learning system for teaching and learning in Saudi public K-12 schools: the benefits, challenges, and concerns. World, 3(1). DOI:http://www.scholink.org/ojs/index.php/wjer

- Alahmari, A., & Kyei-Blankson, L. (2018). Comparing teacher experiences using a learning management system in K-12 schools in Saudi Arabia. In *Handbook of research on pedagogical models for next-generation teaching and learning* (pp. 345-360). IGI Global. DOI:10.4018/978-1-5225-3873-8.ch019
- Alamri, B. (2019). Foreign culture in English curriculum in Saudi Arabia: A teacher's voice. Arab World English Journal: Special Issue1: Application of Global ELT Practices in Saudi Arabia September. DOI: https://dx.doi.org/10.24093/awej/elt1.3
- Alanazi, D., Alghamdi, R., & Alghamdi, A. (2020). Teacher Perceptions of Gender Roles, Socialization, and Culture During Children's Physical Play. *International Journal of the Whole Child*, 5(1), 28-38. Teacher Perceptions of Gender Roles, Socialization, and Culture During Children's Physical Play | International Journal of the Whole Child (mtsu.edu)
- AL-ARABIYA (2020). English News. Available at: https://english.alarabiya.net/en/News/gulf/2020/03/08/Coronavirus-Saudi-Arabia-suspends-all-schools-universities-until-further-notice (Accessed on 26 September, 2020)
- AlAteeq, D. A., Aljhani, S., & AlEesa, D. (2020). Perceived stress among students in virtual classrooms during the COVID-19 outbreak in KSA. *Journal of Taibah* <u>University</u> <u>Medical</u> <u>Sciences</u>, 15(5), 398-403. DOI:https://doi.org/10.1016/j.jtumed.2020.07.004
- Albalawi, W. (2014). Evaluating the usability of SAFEER e-services implemented by the Saudi Arabian Cultural Mission (SACM) in the USA. *Journal of Management and Marketing Research*, *17*, 1-16. DOI:http://www.aabri.com/copyright.html.
- Albaqami, H. M. (2019). Preparing Pre-Service Teachers to Use Digital Visual Media for Twenty-First Century Teaching and Learning: Practices and Visions of Teacher Preparation Programs in Saudi Arabia. *Journal of Critical Reviews*, 3(5), 230-240. https://digscholarship.unco.edu/dissertations/575/
- Albialy, S. M., Elshafie, M., Shokry, M., & Mallasi, Z. (2020). Jeddah's Media Complex. *Journal of Critical Reviews*, 7(8), 239-244.
- Al-Busaidi, K. A., & Al-Shihi, H. (2012). Key factors to instructors' satisfaction of learning management systems in blended learning. Journal of Computing in Higher Education, 24(1), 18-39. DOI:https://doi.org/10.1007/s12528-011-9051-x
- Aldiab, A., Chowdhury, H., Kootsookos, A., Alam, F., & Allhibi, H. (2019). Utilization of Learning Management Systems (LMSs) in higher education system: A case review for Saudi Arabia. *Energy Procedia*, 160, 731-737. DOI:https://doi.org/10.1016/j.egypro.2019.02.186
- Aldosemani, T., Shepherd, C. E., & Bolliger, D. U. (2019). Perceptions of Instructors Teaching in Saudi Blended Learning Environments. *TechTrends*, 63(3), 341-352. DOI: https://doi.org/10.1007/s11528-018-0342-1

- Aldossry, B. (2021). Evaluating The Madrasati Platform for The Virtual Classroom in Saudi Arabian Education During the Time of Covid-19 Pandemic. *European Journal of Open Education and E-learning Studies*, 6(1).
   DOI: http://dx.doi.org/10.46827/ejoe.v6i1.3620
- Aldubayan, K. (2020). Teachers' perspectives on nutrition education in boys' public high schools in Riyadh, Saudi Arabia. *Eastern Mediterranean Health Journal*, 26(2). https://doi.org/10.26719/2020.26.2.170
- Algahtani, M. (2017). Factors influencing the adoption of learning management systems in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabian universities by female academic staff. Doctor of Philosophy (PhD), RMIT University. https://researchrepository.rmit.edu.au/esploro/outputs/doctoral/Factorsinfluencing-the-adoption-of-learning/9921863782401341
- Al-Gahtani, S. S. (2016). Empirical investigation of e-learning acceptance and assimilation: A structural equation model. Applied Computing and Informatics, 12(1), 27-50. DOI:https://doi.org/10.1016/j.aci.2014.09.001
- Algaissi, A. A., Alharbi, N. K., Hassanain, M., & Hashem, A. M. (2020). Preparedness and Response to COVID-19 in Saudi Arabia: Building on MERS Experience. Journal of Infection and Public Health. DOI:https://doi.org/10.1016/j.egypro.2019.02.186
- Alghamdi, J., & Holland, C. (2020). A comparative analysis of policies, strategies and programmes for information and communication technology integration in education in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia and the republic of Ireland. *Education and Information Technologies*. DOI:https://doi.org/10.1007/s10639-020-10169-5
- Alhamazani, F. H. (2020). Exploratory Factor Analysis Toward Adoption Of Cloud Computing By Faculty Members In Saudi Arabian Universities For Teaching And Learning. *International Journal of Computer Science and Network* Security, 20(2), 8-15. DOI:https://doi.org/10.22937/IJCSNS.2020.20.2.2
- Alharbi, Saleh, and Steve Drew (2014). Using the technology acceptance model in understanding academics' behavioral intention to use learning management systems." International Journal of Advanced Computer Science and Applications 5.1, 143-155. https://pdfs.semanticscholar.org/f996/9c881e6228723b0e6975abc190b30926d1 ef.pdf
- Al-Hunaiyyan, A., Alhajri, R., & Al-Sharhan, S. (2020). Instructors age and gender differences in the acceptance of mobile learning. *International Journal of Interactive Mobile Technologies*, 11(4), 4-16. DOI:https://doi.org/10.3991/ijim.v11i4.6185
- Aljaber, A. (2018). E-learning policy in Saudi Arabia: Challenges and successes. *Research in Comparative and International Education*, 13(1), 176-194. https://doi.org/10.1177/1745499918764147

- Aljaloud, A., Billingsley, W., & Kwan, P. (2019). Factors that influence teachers' decisions to use smartphone clicker apps to enhance teacher-student interactions in university classrooms in Saudi Arabia. Learning: *Research and Practice*, 5(1), 67-86. DOI:https://doi.org/10.1080/23735082.2018.1459802
- Alkhasawneh, S. (2020). Perception of Academic Staff Toward Barriers, Incentives, and Benefits of the Open Educational Resources (OER) Network (SHMS) at Saudi Universities. *Italian Journal of Sociology of Education*, 12(1). DOI:http://dx.doi.org/10.14658/pupj-ijse-2020-1-12
- Alkinani, E. A., & Alzahrani, A. I. (2021). Evaluating the Usability and Effectiveness of Madrasati Platforms as a Learning Management System in Saudi Arabia for Public Education. *International Journal of Computer Science & Network* Security, 21(6), 275-285. DOI:https://doi.org/10.22937/IJCSNS.2021.21.6.36
- Al-Maatouk, Q., Othman, M. S., Aldraiweesh, A., Alturki, U., Al-Rahmi, W. M., & Aljeraiwi, A. A. (2020). Task-Technology Fit and Technology Acceptance Model Application to Structure and Evaluate the Adoption of Social Media in Academia. *IEEE Access*, 8, 78427-78440. DOI: 10.1109/ACCESS.2020.2990420
- Almanasreh, E., Moles, R., & Chen, T. F. (2019). Evaluation of methods used for estimating content validity. *Research in Social and Administrative Pharmacy*, 15(2), 214-221. DOI:https://doi.org/10.1016/j.sapharm.2018.03.066
- Almarri, J., Rashid, R. A. A., & Aljohani, S. (2019). Teachers'belief Towards The Implementation Of ICT In Intermediate Schools In Saudi Arabia. *Journal of Technology Enhanced Learning*, 12(2), 200-217. DOI: 10.14456/ITJEMAST.2020.73
- Almazroa, H., & Al-Shamrani, S. (2015). Saudi Science Teacher Professional Development: Trends, Practices and Future Directions. In Science education in the arab gulf states (pp. 1-21). Brill Sense. DOI https://brill.com/view/book/edcoll/9789463000499/BP000002.xml
- Almuqayteeb, T. A. (2019). Attitudes of female faculty toward the use of computer technologies and the barriers that limit their use of technologies in girls' colleges in Saudi Arabia (Doctoral dissertation, Mississippi State University). DOI https://www.proquest.com/dissertations-theses/attitudes-female-faculty-towarduse-computer/docview/304941987/se-2?accountid=27931
- Almutairi, S. M., Gutub, A. A. A., & Al-Juaid, N. A. (2020). Motivating teachers to use information technology in educational process within Saudi Arabia. *International Journal of Technology Enhanced Learning*, 12(2), 200-217. DOI ttps://www.inderscienceonline.com/doi/abs/10.1504/IJTEL.2020.106286
- Alnahdi, G. (2020). Are we ready for inclusion? teachers' perceived self-efficacy for inclusive education in Saudi Arabia. International Journal of Disability, Development and Education, 67(2), 182-193. DOI https://doi.org/10.1080/1034912X.2019.1634795

- Al-Ohali, Y., Alhojailan, M., Palavitsinis, N., Najjar, J., Koutoumanos, A., & AlSuhaibani, A. (2019). Human Factors in Digital Transformation of Education: Lessons Learned from the Future Gate at Saudi K-12. In International Conference on Applied Human Factors and Ergonomics (pp. 52-64). Springer, Cham. DOI https://doi.org/10.1007/978-3-030-20135-7\_5
- Al-Qahtani, A. A. (2020). Teaching pragmatic competence in EFL context: the case of Saudi EFL teachers. Asian EFL Journal, 27(4), 137-164. https://www.researchgate.net/profile/Abdulaziz-Al-Qahtani-3/publication/348787875\_Teaching\_Pragmatic\_Competence\_in\_EFL\_Context\_ The\_Case\_of\_Saudi\_EFL\_Teachers/links/60106c9392851c2d4df6877b/Teachin g-Pragmatic-Competence-in-EFL-Context-The-Case-of-Saudi-EFL-Teachers.pdf
- Alqahtani, M. M. (2019). Self-efficacy and Factors Affecting the Levels of Technology Implementation among Teachers in Saudi Arabia (Doctoral dissertation, Indiana State University). Available from ProQuest Dissertations & Theses Global. DOI https://www.proquest.com/dissertations-theses/self-efficacy-factors-affectinglevels-technology/docview/2305557407/se-2?accountid=27931
- Al-Qahtani, N & "Al-Qahtani, R. (2020). Using the Technology Available in the Learning Resource Centres (LRCs) in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia: Arabic Language Teachers' Perceptions في مصادر التعلم في مصادر التعليم التقنيات التعليمية المتاحة في مصادر التعلم في محافظة بيشه بالمملكة العربية السعودية: تصورات معلمي اللغة العربية. مجلة العلوم التربيوية و DOI https://ajsrp.com/journal/jeps/article/download/2346/2217
- Alqurashi, E., Gokbel, E. N., & Carbonara, D. (2017). Teachers' knowledge in content, pedagogy and technology integration: A comparative analysis between teachers in Saudi Arabia and United States. *British Journal of Educational Technology*, 48(6), 1414-1426. DOI https://doi.org/10.1111/bjet.12514
- Alrashoud, K. A. (2020). Managing Technology Transition in Saudi Arabia. *Springer Books*. DOI https://link.springer.com/book/10.1007%2F978-981-15-5803-0
- Alsaleh, B. A. (2019). K-12 Education Reforms in Saudi Arabia: Implications for Change Management and Leadership Education. In *Teaching Educational Leadership in Muslim Countries* (pp. 171-186). Springer, Singapore. DOI https://link.springer.com/chapter/10.1007/978-981-13-6818-9\_10
- Alsalim, W. A. (2021). Primary School Teachers Adaptation towards' Madrasati'Elearning Platform during Covid-19 Crisis. *International Journal of Educational Sciences*, 86-94. bysalud.org
- Alsauidi, F. (2015). Effect of the school facilities factor and sport activities factor on parents in terms of private and public school choice at Riyadh City Saudi Arabia. *Universal Journal of Educational Research*, *3*(12), 1054-1069. DOI http://www.hrpub.org
- Alshaikh, K., Maasher, S., Bayazed, A., Saleem, F., Badri, S., & Fakieh, B. (2021). Impact of COVID-19 on the educational process in Saudi Arabia: A technology–

organization–environment framework. *Sustainability*, *13*(13), 7103. DOI: https://doi.org/10.3390/su13137103

- Alshammari, S. H., Ali, M. B., & Rosli, M. S. (2016). The Influences of Technical Support, Self-efficacy and Instructional Design on the Usage and Acceptance of LMS: A Comprehensive Review. Turkish on-line Journal of Educational Technology (TOJET), 15(2), 116-125. DOI http://www.tojet.net
- Al-Sharhan, S., Al-Hunaiyyan, A., Alhajri, R., & Al-Huwail, N. (2020). Utilization of Learning Management System (LMS) among Instructors and Students. In Advances in Electronics Engineering (pp. 15-23). Springer, Singapore. DOI https://doi.org/10.1007/978-981-15-1289-6\_2
- Alshehri, A., & Cumming, T. M. (2020). Mobile Technologies and Knowledge Management in Higher Education Institutions: Students' and Educators' Perspectives. *World Journal of Education*, 10(1), 12-22. DOI http://www.sciedupress.com/journal/index.php/wje/index/
- Alshehri, A., Rutter, M. J., & Smith, S. (2019). An implementation of the UTAUT model for understanding Students' perceptions of learning management systems: A study within tertiary institutions in Saudi Arabia. *International Journal of Distance Education Technologies (IJDET)*, 17(3), 1-24. DOI: 10.4018/IJDET.2019070101
- Al-Shehri, M. (2017). The Effectiveness of D2L System: An Evaluation of Teaching-Learning Process in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia. *Institutions*, 8(1). DOI http://www.ijacsa.thesai.org/
- Al-Shehri, S. (2020). Transforming English Language Education in Saudi Arabia: Why Does Technology Matter?. *International Journal of Emerging Technologies in Learning*, 15(06), 108-123. https://www.learntechlib.org/p/217195/
- Alshehri, Y. A., Mordhah, N., Alsibiani, S., Alsobhi, S., & Alnazzawi, N. (2020). How the Regular Teaching Converted to Fully Online Teaching in Saudi Arabia during the Coronavirus COVID-19. *Creative Education*, 11(7), 985-996. DOI: 10.4236/ce.2020.117071
- Alsmadi, M. K. (2020). The students' acceptance of learning management systems in Saudi Arabian Universities. *International Journal of Electrical and Computer Engineering*, 10(4), 4155. DOI http://ijece.iaescore.com/index.php/IJECE
- Alsmadi, M. K., Al-Marashdeh, I., Alzaqebah, M., Jaradat, G., Alghamdi, F. A., Mohammad, R. M. A., ... & Tayfour, M. (2021). Digitalization of learning in Saudi Arabia during the COVID-19 outbreak: A survey. *Informatics in Medicine* Unlocked, 25, 100632. DOI:https://doi.org/10.1016/j.imu.2021.100632
- Alubthane, F. O. A. (2021). Saudi School Education During the COVID-19 Pandemic: The Madrasati Platform. *Scientific Journal of King Faisal University Basic and Applied Sciences*, 316-324. bysalud.org

- AL-Waheaid, N. M & "AbdulrahmanAL-Fantok, A. (2020). The requirements for the application of the Learning Organization at schools applying King Abdullah's project for the development of public education at Riyadh City د منطلبات تطبيق المدارس المطبقة لمشروع الملك عبدالله لتطوير التعليم العام بمدينة الرياض. مجلة DOI https://doi.org/10.26389/AJSRP.N111119
- Alwahoub, H. M., Azmi, M. N. L., & Jomaa, N. J. (2020). Teachers' and Students' Perceptions of E-Learning Integration in the Primary Schools of Saudi Arabia. *International Journal of Advanced Research in Education and Society*, 2(1), 116-126. DOI https://myjms.mohe.gov.my/index.php/ijares/article/view/9009
- Alzahrani, F. Y., & Althaqafi, A. S. (2020). EFL Teachers' Perceptions of the Effectiveness of Online Professional Development in Higher Education in Saudi Arabia. *Higher Education Studies*, 10(1), 121-131. DOI http://www.ccsenet.org/journal/index.php/hes
- Alzaidi, M. S. (2020). The Diffusion of M-learning Innovation: The Case of Saudi Arabia. In 2020 6th International Conference on Information Management (ICIM) (pp. 329-334). IEEE. DOI: 10.1109/ICIM49319.2020.244720
- Alzobiani, I. (2020). The Qualities of Effective Teachers as Perceived by Saudi EFL Students and Teachers. *English Language Teaching*, *13*(2), 32-47. DOI: https://eric.ed.gov/?id=EJ1240315
- Amasha, M. A., Areed, M. F., Alkhalaf, S., Abougalala, R. A., Elatawy, S. M., & Khairy, D. (2020). The future of using Internet of Things (loTs) and Context-Aware Technology in E-learning. In *Proceedings of the 2020 9th International Conference on Educational and Information Technology* (pp. 114-123). https://doi.org/10.1145/3383923.3383970
- Amelina, S. M., Tarasenko, R. O., & Azaryan, A. A. (2018). Information and technology case as an indicator of information competence level of the translator. In Proceedings of the 6th Workshop on Cloud Technologies in Education (CTE 2018), Kryvyi Rih, Ukraine (pp. 266-278).
- Amka, A., & Dalle, J. (2022). The Satisfaction of the Special Need'Students with E-Learning Experience during COVID-19 Pandemic: A Case of Educational Institutions in Indonesia. *Contemporary Educational Technology*, 14(1). DOI:https://doi.org/10.30935/cedtech/11371
- Anatolievna, K. S., & Anatolievna, O. J. (2019). Using the elements of gamification on LMS MOODLE in the discipline of foreign language in a non-linguistic university. *Балтийский гуманитарный журнал*, 8(1 (26)). https://cyberleninka.ru/article/n/using-the-elements-of-gamification-on-lmsmoodle-in-the-discipline-of-foreign-language-in-a-non-linguistic-university
- Angkurawaranon, C., Pateekhum, C., & Thaikla, K. (2020). Probability sampling in population-based behavioral health surveys: Lessons from Thailand. SAGE Publications Ltd. DOI: https://dx.doi.org/10.4135/9781529735536

- Arioder, L. J. Q., Arioder, V. Q., Quintana, V. V., & Dagamac, N. H. (2020). Application of constructivist teaching approach in introducing new environmental concepts to young elementary students in the Philippines: A small class sized experience from slime moulds modeling. *Interdisciplinary Journal of Environmental and Science Education*, 16(2), e2214.
- Asamoah, M. K. (2020). Sturdiness and scuffle in deploying educational technologies for teaching and learning in a low-technology context: Students' experience in a developing society. *African Journal of Science, Technology, Innovation and Development*, 1-18. https://doi.org/10.29333/ijese/7818
- Ashrafi, A., Zareravasan, A., Rabiee Savoji, S., & Amani, M. (2020). Exploring factors influencing students' continuance intention to use the learning management system (LMS): a multi-perspective framework. *Interactive Learning Environments*, 1-23. https://doi.org/10.1080/10494820.2020.1734028
- Asiri, M. J. S. (2012). Factors influencing the use of learning management system in Saudi Arabian higher education: A theoretical framework. *Higher Education Studies*, 2(2), 125-137. https://eric.ed.gov/?id=ej1081529
- Asiri, M. J. S., Bakar, K. A., & Ayub, A. F. B. M. (2012). Factors influencing the use of learning management system in Saudi Arabian higher education: A theoretical framework. *Higher Education Studies*, 2(2), 125-137. DOI:10.5539/hes.v2n2p125
- Asiri, M. J., Mahmud, R., Bakar, K. A., & Ayub, A. F. M. (2012). Role of attitude in utilization of Jusur LMS in Saudi Arabian universities. Procedia-Social and Behavioral Sciences, 64, 525-534. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.sbspro.2012.11.062
- Attuquayefio, S. & Addo, H. (2014). Using the UTAUT model to analyze students' ICT adoption. International Journal of Education and Development using Information and Communication Technology, 10(3), pp.75-86. https://www.learntechlib.org/p/148478/
- Badwelan, A., Drew, S., & Bahaddad, A. A. (2016). Towards acceptance m-learning approach in higher education in Saudi Arabia. *International Journal of Business and Management*, 11(8), 12. doi:10.5539/ijbm.v11n8p12
- Balaman, S. (2020). A Study on the Impacts of Digital Storytelling on EFL Learners' Self-Efficacy and Attitudes toward Education Technologies. *International Online Journal of Education and Teaching*, 7(1), 289-311. https://eric.ed.gov/?id=EJ1244246
- Barragán-Sánchez, R., Corujo-Vélez, M. C., Palacios-Rodríguez, A., & Román-Graván, P. (2020). Teaching Digital Competence and Eco-Responsible Use of Technologies: *Development and Validation of a Scale. Sustainability*, 12(18), 7721. https://doi.org/10.3390/su12187721

- Barri, M. A. (2020). Evaluation of Digital Competency of Public University Students for Web-Facilitated Learning: *The Case of Saudi Arabia. International Education Studies*, 13(12), 58-69. https://doi.org/10.5539/ies.v13n12p58
- Becker, D. A., Bonadie-Joseph, I., & Cain, J. (2013). Developing and completing a library mobile technology survey to create a user-centered mobile presence. *Library Hi Tech*, 31(4), 688-699. https://doi.org/10.1108/LHT-03-2013-0032
- Bedenlier, S., Bond, M., Buntins, K., Zawacki-Richter, O., & Kerres, M. (2020). Facilitating student engagement through educational technology in higher education: A systematic review in the field of arts and humanities. *Australasian Journal of Educational Technology*, 126-150. https://doi.org/10.14742/ajet.5477
- Bellaaj, M., Zekri, I., & Albugami, M. (2015). The continued use of e-learning system: An empirical investigation using UTAUT model at the University of Tabuk. Journal of Theoretical & Applied Information Technology, 72(3). http://www.jatit.org/volumes/Vol72No3/18Vol72No3.pdf
- Bervell, B., & Arkorful, V. (2020). LMS-enabled blended learning utilization in distance tertiary education: establishing the relationships among facilitating conditions, voluntariness of use and use behavior. *International Journal of Educational Technology in Higher Education*, 17(1), 1-16. Doi https://doi.org/10.1186/s41239-020-0183-9
- Bervell, B., & Umar, I. N. (2020). Blended learning or face-to-face? Does Tutor anxiety prevent the adoption of Learning Management Systems for distance education in Ghana?. Open Learning: The Journal of Open, Distance and e-Learning, 35(2), 159-177. https://doi.org/10.1080/02680513.2018.1548964
- Bervell, B., Nyagorme, P., & Arkorful, V. (2020). LMS-Enabled Blended Learning Use Intentions among Distance Education Tutors: Examining the Mediation Role of Attitude Based on Technology-Related Stimulus-Response Theoretical Framework. *Contemporary Educational Technology*, 12(2), ep273. https://doi.org/10.30935/cedtech/8317
- Bhat, S. A., Alyahya, D., Dar, M. A., & Shah, S. (2022, February 24-28). Edge-Computing based Secure E-learning Platforms. In 2022 International Conference on Artificial Intelligence in Information and Communication (ICAIIC). Jeju Island, Republic of Korea. DOI: 10.1109/ICAIIC54071.2022.9722680
- Binyamin, S. S., Rutter, M. J., & Smith, S. (2020). The moderating effect of gender and age on the students' acceptance of learning management systems in Saudi higher education. *Knowledge Management & E-Learning: An International Journal*, 12(1), 30-62. http://www.kmel-journal.org/ojs/index.php/onlinepublication/article/view/432
- Binyamin, S., Rutter, M., & Smith, S. (2017). The students' acceptance of learning management systems in Saudi Arabia: A case study of King Abdulaziz University. In 11th Annual International Conference of Technology, Education and Development (INTED2017). Doi: http://doi.org/10.21125/inted.2017.2205

- Bloomfield, J., & Fisher, M. J. (2019). Quantitative research design. *Journal of the Australasian Rehabilitation Nurses Association*, 22(2), 27-30. https://search.informit.org/doi/epdf/10.3316/informit.738299924514584
- Bloom-Weltman, J. (2019). Statewide Longitudinal Data Systems (SLDS) Survey Analysis: Descriptive Statistics. Stats in Brief. NCES 2020-157. National Center for Education Statistics. https://eric.ed.gov/?id=ED599400
- Bouznif, M. M. (2017). Business Students' Continuance Intention toward Blackboard Usage: An Empirical Investigation of UTAUT Model. International Journal of Business and Management, 13(1), 120. https://pdfs.semanticscholar.org/0ad5/0d5cba7793652df18553a4aedaf12ea9cc3 1.pdf
- Brittain, S., Ibbett, H., de Lange, E., Dorward, L., Hoyte, S., Marino, A., ... & Lewis, J. (2020). Ethical considerations when conservation research involves people. *Conservation Biology*. https://doi.org/10.1111/cobi.13464
- Bryman. A. & Bell, E. (2019). Business research methods Fifth edition. Oxford University Press. Business Research Methods - Emma Bell, Alan Bryman, Bill Harley - Google Books
- Bullinger, L. R., Carr, J. B., & Packham, A. (2020). COVID-19 and Crime: Effects of Stay-at-Home Orders on Domestic Violence (No. w27667). National Bureau of Economic Research. https://www.journals.uchicago.edu/doi/abs/10.1086/713787
- Burke, R. (2018). Educational mobility and EFL students and teachers in Saudi Arabia: navigating diverse sociocultural and pedagogical spaces. In *English as a Foreign Language* in Saudi Arabia (pp. 146-164). Routledge. https://www.taylorfrancis.com/chapters/edit/10.4324/9781315688466-7/educational-mobility-efl-students-teachers-saudi-arabia-rachel-burke

Burns, E., & Groove, W. (2014). Research method. Ergonomics, 32(3), 237-248.

- Byrne, B. M. (2001). Structural equation modeling with AMOS, EQS, and LISREL: Comparative approaches to testing for the factorial validity of a measuring instrument. International journal of testing, 1(1), 55-86. https://doi.org/10.1207/S15327574IJT0101\_4
- Byrne, B. M. (2010). Structural equation modeling with AMOS: basic concepts, applications, and programming (multivariate applications series). New York: Taylor & Francis Group, 396, 7384. https://doi.org/10.1207/S15327574IJT0101\_4
- Cabero-Almenara, J., Arancibia, M., & Del Prete, A. (2019). Technical and didactic knowledge of the Moodle LMS in higher education. Beyond functional use. *Journal of New Approaches in Educational Research (NAER Journal)*, 8(1), 25-33. DOI: https://www.learntechlib.org/p/207147/

- Cao, Y., Bi, X., & Wang, L. (2013). A study on user adoption of cloud storage service in China: A revised unified theory of acceptance and use of technology model. In 2013 International Conference on Information Science and Cloud Computing Companion (pp. 287-293). IEEE. DOI: 10.1109/ISCC-C.2013.32
- Cevallos-Torres, L., & Botto-Tobar, M. (2019). Process sampling. In Problem-Based Learning: A Didactic Strategy in the Teaching of System Simulation (pp. 13-31). Springer, Cham. Problem-Based Learning: A Didactic Strategy in the Teaching of System Simulation - Lorenzo Cevallos-Torres, Miguel Botto-Tobar - Google Books
- Çevik, M., & Bakioğlu, B. (2022). Investigating students' E-Learning attitudes in times of crisis (COVID-19 pandemic). *Education and Information Technologies*, 27(1), 65-87. https://doi.org/10.1007/s10639-021-10591-3
- Cha, J. (2010). Factors affecting the frequency and amount of social networking site use: Motivations, perceptions, and privacy concerns. *First Monday*. https://journals.uic.edu/ojs/index.php/fm/article/download/2889/2685
- Chao, C. M. (2019). Factors determining the behavioral intention to use mobile learning: An application and extension of the UTAUT model. Frontiers in psychology, 10, 1652. https://doi.org/10.3389/fpsyg.2019.01652
- Chapes, J. (2022). Practices and Pedagogy: Extending TAM to Explore LMS Use. Doctoral dissertation, University of Kansas. https://www.proquest.com/docview/2682402656?pqorigsite=gscholar&fromopenview=true
- Chawla, D., & Joshi, H. (2020). The moderating role of gender and age in the adoption of mobile wallet. *Journal of Adult and Continuing Education*, 6(3), 17-28. https://doi.org/10.1108/FS-11-2019-0094
- Chi, T. P., Tu, T. N., & Minh, T. P. (2020). Assessment of Information Technology Use Competence for Teachers: Identifying and Applying the Information Technology Competence Framework in Online Teaching. *Journal of Technical Education and Training*, 12(1). https://publisher.uthm.edu.my/ojs/index.php/JTET/article/view/5239
- Chiang, T. H., & Trezise, D. (2020). How teacher competence functions as an institutionalised discourse in the epoch of globalisation. *Cambridge Journal of Education*, 1-21. https://doi.org/10.1080/0305764X.2020.1782352
- Chick, R. C., Clifton, G. T., Peace, K. M., Propper, B. W., Hale, D. F., Alseidi, A. A., & Vreeland, T. J. (2020). Using technology to maintain the education of residents during the COVID-19 pandemic. *Journal of Surgical Education*. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.jsurg.2020.03.018
- Chobjai, N., & Sanrattana, W. (2022). Online Program to Enhance Teacher Learning to Develop Students' Information Literacy Skills. *Education Quarterly Reviews*, 5(2), 484-495. DOI:10.31014/aior.1993.05.02.507

Cochran, W. G. (2007). Sampling techniques. New York: John Wiley and Sons.

- Cohen, D. K. (1988). 11 Educational Technology and School Organization. *Technology in education: Looking toward* 2020, 231.
- Cohen, D. K., Nickerson, R. S., & Zodhiates, P. P. (2020) Educational technology and school organization Technology in education: Looking toward 2020 1988 Hillsdale. NJ Erlbaum, 231, 264.
- Coleman, E., & Mtshazi, S. (2017). Factors affecting the use and non-use of Learning Management Systems (LMS) by academic staff. South African Computer Journal, 29(3), 31-63. https://hdl.handle.net/10520/EJC-c5c71ede6
- Collopy, R. (2020). Attending to Conditions That Facilitate Intercultural Competence: A Reciprocal Service-Learning Approach. *Michigan Journal of Community Service Learning*, 26(1), 19-38. DOI: https://doi.org/10.3998/mjcsloa.3239521.0026.102
- Cooksey, R. W. (2020). Inferential Statistics for Hypothesis Testing. In *Illustrating Statistical Procedures: Finding Meaning in Quantitative Data* (pp. 241-451). Springer, Singapore.
- Cousineau, D. (2020). How many decimals? Rounding descriptive and inferential statistics based on measurement precision. *Journal of Mathematical Psychology*, 97, 102362. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.jmp.2020.102362
- Creswell, J. W., & Creswell, J. D. (2017). *Research design: Qualitative, quantitative, and mixed methods approaches*. Sage publications.
- Dane, F. C. (2011). Evaluating research: Methodology for people who need to read research. Los Angeles: Sage. Evaluating Research: Methodology for People Who Need to Read Research - Francis C. Dane - Google Books

Darrow, B.H., 1932. Radio, the assistant teacher. RG Adams & company.

- Davis, F. D., Bagozzi, R. P. & Warshaw, P. R. (1989). User acceptance of computer technology: A comparison of two theoretical models. *Management Science*, 35(8), 982-1003. DOI:https://doi.org/10.1287/mnsc.35.8.982
- Dell, R. B., Holleran, S., & Ramakrishnan, R. (2002). Sample size determination. *ILAR journal*, 43(4), 207-213. DOI:https://doi.org/10.1093/ilar.43.4.207
- Djeki, E., Dégila, J., Bondiombouy, C., & Alhassan, M. H. (2022). E-learning bibliometric analysis from 2015 to 2020. *Journal of Computers in Education*, 1-28. DOI:https://doi.org/10.1007/s40692-021-00218-4
- Do Nam Hung, J. T., Azam, S. F., & Khatibi, A. A. (2019). An Empirical Analysis of Perceived Transaction Convenience, Performance Expectancy, Effort Expectancy and Behavior Intention to Mobile Payment of Cambodian Users. *International Journal of Marketing Studies*, 11(4). doi:10.5539/ijms.v11n4p77

- Dobson, T., & Willinsky, J. (2009). Digital literacy. *The Cambridge handbook of literacy*, 286-312.
- Domingo, M. G., & Garganté, A. B. (2016). Exploring the use of educational technology in primary education: Teachers' perception of mobile technology learning impacts and applications' use in the classroom. *Computers in Human Behavior*, 56, 21-28. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.chb.2015.11.023
- Dong, X. (2019). Performance Expectancy, Effort Expectancy, Social Influence, Facilitating Conditions, and Relative Advantage Affecting Chinese Customers' Decision to Use Mobile Payment in Bangkok. http://dspace.bu.ac.th/jspui/handle/123456789/3779
- Dwivedi, Y. K., Wade, M. R., & Schneberger, S. L. (2011). Information systems theory:
  Explaining and predicting our digital society (Vol. 1). Springer Science &
  Business Media. Information Systems Theory: Explaining and Predicting Our
  Digital Society ... Google Books
- Eccles, J. S., & Wigfield, A. (2020). From expectancy-value theory to situated expectancy-value theory: A developmental, social cognitive, and sociocultural perspective on motivation. *Contemporary Educational Psychology*, 101859. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.cedpsych.2020.101859
- Echeng, R., & Usoro, A. (2017). E-learning implementation issues and strategies to address low participation using an enhanced model of acceptance of web 2.0 technologies: A case study of a scottish university. International Journal on ELearning, 16(1), 5-22. https://www.learntechlib.org/primary/p/148466/
- Ekayanti, S. R. (2018, October). UTAUT in Communication Technology of Learning Management System. In 2018 International Conference on Advanced Computer Science and Information Systems (ICACSIS) (pp. 253-258). https://staff.ui.ac.id/system/files/users/irwansyah09/publication/utaut\_2018.pdf
- Eken, S. (2020). An exploratory teaching program in big data analysis for undergraduate students. *Journal of Ambient Intelligence and Humanized Computing*, 11(10), 4285-4304. DOI: https://doi.org/10.1007/s12652-020-02447-4
- Elas, N., Majid, F., & Narasuman, S. (2019). Development of Technological Pedagogical Content Knowledge (TPACK) for English Teachers: The Validity and Reliability. *International Journal of Emerging Technologies in Learning* (*iJET*), 14(20), 18-33. https://www.learntechlib.org/p/217117/
- Elashhab, S. (2020). Motivational Teaching Strategies within Saudi University EFL Classrooms: How to Improve Students' Achievement?. *International Journal of Language* and *Literary Studies*, 2(1), 124-141. https://doi.org/10.36892/ijlls.v2i1.173
- Elfeky, A. I. M., Masadeh, T. S. Y., & Elbyaly, M. Y. H. (2020). Advance organizers in flipped classroom via e-learning management system and the promotion of

integrated science process skills. *Thinking Skills and Creativity*, 35, 100622. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.tsc.2019.100622

- Elyas, T., & Picard, M. (2010). Saudi Arabian educational history: Impacts on English language teaching. *Education, Business and Society: Contemporary Middle Eastern Issues*. https://doi.org/10.1108/17537981011047961
- Emiroğlu, B. G. (2019). Investigating Faculty Members' Perceived Usability of Edmodo Learning Management System. DOI: http://dx.doi.org/10.17984/adyuebd.533131
- Emstad, A. B., & Sandvik, L. V. (2020). School–University Collaboration for Facilitating In-Service Teacher Training as a Part of School-Based Professional Development. Acta Didactica Norden, 14(2), 20-sider. https://hdl.handle.net/11250/2676625
- Engeness, I. (2020). Teacher facilitating of group learning in science with digital technology and insights into students' agency in learning to learn. *Research in science* & *technological* education, 38(1), 42-62. https://doi.org/10.1080/02635143.2019.1576604
- Fadil, O. A., & Khaldi, M. (2020). Learning Management Systems: Concept and Challenges. In *Personalization and Collaboration in Adaptive E-Learning* (pp. 158-175). IGI Global.
- Farjon, D., Smits, A., & Voogt, J. (2019). Technology integration of pre-service teachers explained by attitudes and beliefs, competency, access, and experience. Computers & Education, 130, 81-93. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.compedu.2018.11.010
- Fathema, N., Shannon, D., & Ross, M. (2015). Expanding the technology acceptance model (TAM) to examine faculty use of learning management systems (LMSs) in higher education institutions. MERLOT Journal of Online Learning and Teaching, 11(2), 210-232. https://jolt.merlot.org/Vol11no2/Fathema\_0615.pdf
- Faustino, P., & Simões, D. (2020). The Contribution of the Technology Acceptance Model for an Active Teaching and Learning Process in Higher Education: A Bibliometric Analysis. In *Handbook of Research on Digital Learning* (pp. 242-261). IGI Global. DOI: 10.4018/978-1-5225-9304-1.ch015
- Fauth, B., Decristan, J., Decker, A. T., Büttner, G., Hardy, I., Klieme, E., & Kunter, M. (2019). The effects of teacher competence on student outcomes in elementary science education: The mediating role of teaching quality. *Teaching and Teacher Education*, 86, 102882. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.tate.2019.102882
- Feyzi Behnagh, R., & Yasrebi, S. (2020). An examination of constructivist educational technologies: Key affordances and conditions. *British Journal of Educational Technology*, 51(6), 1907-1919. https://doi.org/10.1111/bjet.13036

- Fornell C. and D. F. Larcker (1981). "Evaluating structural equation models with unobservable variables and measurement error," Journal of Marketing Research, vol.18, no.1, pp. 39–50, 1981.
- Frad, H., & Jedidi, A. (2022). Online Education During Covid-19 Pandemic in Kingdom of Saudi Arabia. In *Technologies, Artificial Intelligence and the Future of Learning Post-COVID-19* (pp. 145-161). Springer. https://doi.org/10.1007/978-3-030-93921-2\_9
- Fu, J. S., Shumate, M., & Contractor, N. (2020). Organizational and Individual Innovation Decisions in an Interorganizational System: Social Influence and Decision-Making Authority. *Journal of Communication*. https://doi.org/10.1093/joc/jqaa018
- Fuad, R. A., Arip, M. A. S. M., & Sa'ad, F. (2019). Validity and Reliability of the HM-Learning Module among High School Students in Malaysia. *International Journal of Academic Research in Business and Social Sciences*, 9(1), 773-787.
- Funmilola, B. O., Olalere, Y. M., Oluwole, O. M., Modupe, A. E., & Ayodeji, A. G. (2019). Examining Performance Expectancy And Effort Expectancy As Determinants Of Secondary School Teachers'behavioral Intention To Use Mobile Technologies For Instruction In Kaduna State, Nigeria. In Conference Proceedings of the AITIE 3rd International Conference and Workshop on Innovation, Technology and Education (ICWITE, Abuja 2019) (p. 30). https://www.ijitie.aitie.org.ng/index.php/ijitie/article/download/97/49#page=44
- Garg, R., Bhaskar, S. B., Das, S., & Harsoor, S. S. (2020). Probability and inferential statistics. *Airway*, *3*(1), 19. DOI: 10.4103/ARWY.ARWY\_13\_20
- Garone, A., Pynoo, B., Tondeur, J., Cocquyt, C., Vanslambrouck, S., Bruggeman, B., & Struyven, K. (2019). Clustering university teaching staff through UTAUT: Implications for the acceptance of a new learning management system. *British Journal of Educational Technology*, 50(5), 2466-2483. DOI:https://doi.org/10.1111/bjet.12867
- Ghavifekr, S., Kunjappan, T., Ramasamy, L., & Anthony, A. (2016). Teaching and Learning with ICT Tools: Issues and Challenges from Teachers' Perceptions. *Malaysian Online Journal of Educational Technology*, 4(2), 38-57. DOI:https://eric.ed.gov/?id=EJ1096028
- Goodman-Deane, J., Bradley, M., & Clarkson, P. J. (2020). Digital technology competence and experience in the UK population: who can do what. *Proceedings* of ergonomics and human factors. https://publications.ergonomics.org.uk/uploads/Digital-technology-competence-and-experience-in-the-UK-population-who-can-do-what.pdf
- Granero-Gallegos, A., Gómez-López, M., Baena-Extremera, A., & Martínez-Molina, M. (2020). Interaction effects of disruptive behavior and motivation profiles with teacher competence and school satisfaction in secondary school physical

education. International Journal of Environmental Research and Public Health, 17(1), 114.DOI: https://doi.org/10.3390/ijerph17010114

- Grassian, E. S., & Kaplowitz, J. R. (2001). Information literacy instruction. *Neal-Schuman, New York, NY.* https://www.kovacs.com/info250readings/ch3Grassian2009pp27-43.pdf
- Gravetter, F. J., & Wallnau, L. B. (2016). edition 10. *Statistics for the behavioral sciences. Boston.* Cengage Learning.
- Gu, P., Zhang, Y., & Gu, H. (2020). Creating a technology-enhanced constructivist learning environment for research ability development in a BA Thesis Writing course. *Computer Assisted Language Learning*, 33(5-6), 538-566. DOI: https://doi.org/10.1080/09588221.2019.1576735
- Gunasinghe, A., Abd Hamid, J., Khatibi, A., & Azam, S. F. (2019). The adequacy of UTAUT-3 in interpreting academician's adoption to e-Learning in higher education environments. *Interactive Technology and Smart Education*. The adequacy of UTAUT-3 in interpreting academician's adoption to e-Learning in higher education environments | Emerald Insight
- Guo, Y. (2014). Moderating effects of gender in the acceptance of mobile SNS-Based on UTAUT model. In 2014 International Conference on Management of e-Commerce and e-Government (pp. 163-167). IEEE. DOI: 10.1109/ICMeCG.2014.41
- Hadoussa, S. (2020). Evaluation of e-learning system on higher education institutions in KSA: a survey at Saudi Electronic University. *International Journal of Technology Enhanced Learning*, *12*(2), 180-199. https://www.inderscienceonline.com/doi/abs/10.1504/IJTEL.2020.106285
- Hair Jr, J. F., Hult, G. T. M., Ringle, C., & Sarstedt, M. (2016). A primer on partial least squares structural equation modeling (PLS-SEM). Sage Publications. Cohen J., Statistical Power Analysis for the Behavioral Sciences, Lawrence ErlbaumAssociates, Hillsdale, NJ, USA, 2nd edition, 1988.
- Hair, Black, Babin, Anderson & Tatham. (2006). Multivariate data analysis (Vol. 6): Upper Saddle River, NJ: Pearson Prentice Hall.
- Hair, J. F., Black, W. C., Babin, B. J., & Anderson, R. E. (2010). Multivariate data analysis (7th Ed.). Englewood Cliffs: Prentice Hall
- Hancock, J. T., Naaman, M., & Levy, K. (2020). AI-Mediated Communication: Definition, Research Agenda, and Ethical Considerations. *Journal of Computer-Mediated Communication*, 25(1), 89-100. https://doi.org/10.1093/jcmc/zmz022
- Hassounah, M., Raheel, H., & Alhefzi, M. (2020). Digital Response During the COVID-19 Pandemic in Saudi Arabia. *Journal of Medical Internet Research*, 22(9), e19338. doi:10.2196/19338

- Hayes, A. F., & Scharkow, M. (2013). The relative trustworthiness of inferential tests of the indirect effect in statistical mediation analysis: Does method really matter?. Psychological science, 24(10), 1918-1927. https://doi.org/10.1177%2F0956797613480187
- Heyder, A., Südkamp, A., & Steinmayr, R. (2020). How are teachers' attitudes toward inclusion related to the social-emotional school experiences of students with and without special educational needs?. *Learning and Individual Differences*, 77, 101776. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.lindif.2019.101776
- Hillerich, R. L. (1976). Toward an assessable definition of literacy. *The English Journal*, 65(2), 50-55.DOI: https://www.jstor.org/stable/814811
- Hobbs, R. (2018). Expanding the concept of literacy. In *Media literacy in the information age* (pp. 163-183). Routledge. https://www.taylorfrancis.com/chapters/edit/10.4324/9781351292924-7/expanding-concept-literacy-renee-hobbs
- Hollands, F., & Escueta, M. (2020). How research informs educational technology decision-making in higher education: the role of external research versus internal research. *Educational Technology Research and Development*, 68(1), 163-180. https://doi.org/10.1007/s11423-019-09678-z
- Holtz, P., & Odağ, Ö. (2020). Popper was not a positivist: Why critical rationalism could be an epistemology for qualitative as well as quantitative social scientific research. *Qualitative research in psychology*, 17(4), 541-564. https://doi.org/10.1080/14780887.2018.1447622
- Htun, Y., Thuzar, K., & Tar, P. P. (2020). E-Learning Activities through ACU Learning Management System: A Case Study of UTYCC. In *Proceeding of the 1st University Research Conference on Science and Engineering*.
- Huang, F., & Teo, T. (2021). Examining the role of technology-related policy and constructivist teaching belief on English teachers' technology acceptance: A study in Chinese universities. *British Journal of Educational Technology*, 52(1), 441-460. https://doi.org/10.1111/bjet.13027
- Huei, O. K., Che'Rus, R., & Kamis, A. (2020). Construct Validity and Reliability in Content Knowledge of Design and Technology Subject: A Rasch Measurement Model Approaches for Pilot Study. *International Journal of Academic Research in Business and Social Sciences*, 10(3), 497-511. DOI:10.6007/ijarbss/v10i3/7066
- Hutchinson, D. (2021). Exploring Optimal Response Labels for Constructing an Interval Type 5-Point Likert Scale. Boise State University. https://www.proquest.com/dissertations-theses/exploring-optimal-responselabels-constructing/docview/2545633259/se-2
- Iffat Rahmatullah, S., Sultana, S., & Sultan, G. (2020). E-Teaching in higher education: An innovative pedagogy to generate digitally competent students at King Khalid

University. E-Teaching in Higher Education: an Innovative Pedagogy to Generate Digitally Competent Students at King Khalid University. https://ssrn.com/abstract=3675971

- Ifinedo, P., Pyke, J., & Anwar, A. (2018). Business undergraduates' perceived use outcomes of Moodle in a blended learning environment: *The roles of usability factors and external support. Telematics and Informatics*, 35(1), 93-102. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.tele.2017.10.001
- Jamal, M., Anas, A., & Ahmad Koka, N. (2020). Perception of Saudi EFL Learners and Teachers towards the Use of Listening Transcript in the Listening Lessons. *Arab World English Journal* (*AWEJ*) *Volume*, *11*. https://dx.doi.org/10.2139/ssrn.3582333
- Jebb, A. T., Parrigon, S., & Woo, S. E. (2017). Exploratory data analysis as a foundation of inductive research. *Human Resource Management Review*, 27(2), 265-276. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.hrmr.2016.08.003
- Jonassen, D. H. (1994). Thinking technology: Toward a constructivist design model. *Educational technology*, *34*(4), 34-37. https://www.learntechlib.org/p/171050/
- Ju-feng, H. (2008). Technological Competence Evolution Model Based on Niche Theory

   [J]. Industrial
   Engineering

   Journal, 3.

   https://en.cnki.com.cn/Article\_en/CJFDTotal-GDJX200803011.htm
- Kalton, G. (2020). *Introduction to survey sampling* (Vol. 35). SAGE Publications, Incorporated.
- Khalil, R., Mansour, A. E., Fadda, W. A., Almisnid, K., Aldamegh, M., Al-Nafeesah, A., ... & Al-Wutayd, O. (2020). The sudden transition to synchronized online learning during the COVID-19 pandemic in Saudi Arabia: a qualitative study exploring medical students' perspectives. BMC medical education, 20(1), 1-10.DOI: https://doi.org/10.1186/s12909-020-02208-z
- Khan, A. W. (1990). Changing Face of Education: Impact of Educational Technology. Bulletin of National Institute of Multimedia Education, No. 5. https://ouj.repo.nii.ac.jp/?action=repository\_action\_common\_download&item\_i d=1220&item\_no=1&attribute\_id=18&file\_no=1
- Khan, R., & Adams, C. (2016). Adoption of learning management systems in Saudi higher education context: Study at king Fahd university of petroleum and minerals & Dammam community college. In Society for Information Technology & Teacher Education International Conference (pp. 2909-2916). Association for the Advancement of Computing in Education (AACE). https://www.learntechlib.org/primary/p/172108/
- Khechine, H., Lakhal, S., Pascot, D., & Bytha, A. (2014). UTAUT model for blended learning: The role of gender and age in the intention to use

webinars. *Interdisciplinary Journal of E-Learning and Learning Objects*, 10(1), 33-52. http://www.ijello.org/Volume10/IJELLOv10p033-052Khechine0876.pdf

- Khine, M. S. (Ed.). (2013). Application of structural equation modeling in educational research and practice (Vol. 7). SensePublishers. https://link.springer.com/book/10.1007%2F978-94-6209-332-4
- Kristiawan, M. (2020). A Model for Upgrading Teachers' Competence on Operating Computer as Assistant of Instruction. *Global Journal of Human-Social Science*, *Linguistics & Education*, 14(5), 42-54. A Model for Upgrading Teachers' Competenceon Operating Computer as Assistant of Instruction (researchgate.net)
- Kuivila, H. M., Mikkonen, K., Sjögren, T., Koivula, M., Koskimäki, M., Männistö, M., ... & Kääriäinen, M. (2020). Health science student teachers' perceptions of teacher competence: A qualitative study. *Nurse Education Today*, 84, 104210. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.nedt.2019.104210
- Kułak, J. P., Trojanowski, M., & Barmentloo, E. (2019). A Literature Review of the Partial Unified Theory of Acceptance and Use of Technology 2 (UTAUT2) Model. Annales Universitatis Mariae Curie-Skłodowska, sectio H– Oeconomia, 53(4), 101-113. DOI: http://dx.doi.org/10.17951/h.2019.53.4.101-113
- Kulikowski, K., Przytuła, S., & Sułkowski, Ł. (2022). E-learning? Never again! On the unintended consequences of COVID-19 forced e-learning on academic teacher motivational job characteristics. *Higher Education Quarterly*, 76(1), 174-189. DOI: 10.1111/hequ.12314
- Kulviwat, S., Bruner II, G. C., & Al-Shuridah, O. (2009). The role of social influence on adoption of high-tech innovations: The moderating effect of public/private consumption. *Journal of Business Research*, 62(7), 706-712. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.jbusres.2007.04.014
- Kumar, D., & Bezdek, J. C. (2020). Visual approaches for exploratory data analysis: a survey of the visual assessment of clustering tendency (VAT) family of algorithms. *IEEE Systems, Man, and Cybernetics Magazine*, 6(2), 10-48.
- Lanfranchi, M., Alibrandi, A., Zirilli, A., Sakka, G., & Giannetto, C. (2020). Analysis of the wine consumer's behavior: an inferential statistics approach. *British Food Journal*. https://doi.org/10.1108/BFJ-08-2019-0581
- Lee, J. G., & Park, M. J. (2020). Evaluation of technological competence and operations efficiency in the defense industry: The strategic planning of South Korea. *Evaluation and Program Planning*, 79, 101775. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.evalprogplan.2019.101775
- Leung, S. O. (2011). A comparison of psychometric properties and normality in 4-, 5-, 6-, and 11-point Likert scales. *Journal of social service research*, *37*(4), 412-421. https://doi.org/10.1080/01488376.2011.580697

- Li, M., & Yu, Z. (2022). Teachers' Satisfaction, Role, and Digital Literacy during the COVID-19 Pandemic. *Sustainability*, *14*(3), 1121. https://doi.org/10.3390/su14031121
- Lim, T. L., & Lee, A. S. H. (2021, July). Extended TAM and TTF Model: A Framework for the 21 st Century Teaching and Learning. In 2021 International Conference on Computer & Information Sciences (ICCOINS) (pp. 339-334). https://ieeexplore.ieee.org/stamp/stamp.jsp?arnumber=9497216&casa\_token=E 1UzkB\_xPcMAAAAA:fJ7n1YYBA5MmCZwPy1MYT2-2hxwmJk4m9sTJYqXK-FB84YrV8C9bF-iWRXhUuSUq8Ii7i830L53w&tag=1
- Lin, H. M., Lee, M. H., Liang, J. C., Chang, H. Y., Huang, P., & Tsai, C. C. (2020). A review of using partial least square structural equation modeling in e-learning research. *British Journal of Educational Technology*, 51(4), 1354-1372. https://doi.org/10.1111/bjet.12890
- Ling, L. W., Ahmad, W. F. W., & Singh, T. K. R. (2020). Behavioral intentional to use computers among educators. *International Journal of Business Information Systems*, 33(1), 144-155. https://www.inderscienceonline.com/doi/abs/10.1504/IJBIS.2020.104800
- Liu, I. F., Chen, M. C., Sun, Y. S., Wible, D., & Kuo, C. H. (2010). Extending the TAM model to explore the factors that affect intention to use an online learning community. *Computers* & *education*, 54(2), 600-610. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.compedu.2009.09.009
- Louhab, F. E., Bahnasse, A., Bensalah, F., Khiat, A., Khiat, Y., & Talea, M. (2020). Novel approach for adaptive flipped classroom based on learning management system. *Education and Information Technologies*, 25(2), 755-773.
- Maatuk, A. M., Elberkawi, E. K., Aljawarneh, S., Rashaideh, H., & Alharbi, H. (2022). The COVID-19 pandemic and E-learning: challenges and opportunities from the perspective of students and instructors. *Journal of Computing in Higher Education*, 34(1), 21-38. https://doi.org/10.1007/s12528-021-09274-2
- Madani, R. A. (2020). Teaching Challenges and Perceptions on STEM Implementation for Schools in Saudi Arabia. *European Journal of STEM Education*, 5(1), 3. https://doi.org/10.20897/ejsteme/8468
- Madrasati [FutureGate\_sa]. (2017, Oct 17). 2.6 billion S.R. for transition to digitize learning. Kingdom of Saudi Arabia. https://www.my.gov.sa/wps/portal/snp/content/news/
- Mafuna, L., & Wadesango, N. (2016). Exploring lecturers' acceptance level of learning management system (LMS) at applying the extended technology acceptance model (TAM). *Journal of Social Sciences*, 48(1-2), 63-70. https://doi.org/10.1080/09718923.2016.11893571
- Magsamen-Conrad, K., Upadhyaya, S., Joa, C. Y., & Dowd, J. (2015). Bridging the divide: Using UTAUT to predict multigenerational tablet adoption

practices. *Computers in human behavior*, 50, 186-196. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.chb.2015.03.032

- Mahdi, H. S., & Al-Dera, A. S. A. (2013). The Impact of Teachers' Age, Gender and Experience on the Use of Information and Communication Technology in EFL Teaching. English Language Teaching, 6(6), 57-67. https://eric.ed.gov/?id=EJ1077056
- Mahgoub, Y. M. (2020). Innovation learning at King Faisal University for achieving UNESCO sustainable development goals. *International Design Journal*, 10(2), 209-213. DOI: 10.21608/idj.2020.81096
- Malcolm, S. A., Mavhunga, E., & Rollnick, M. (2019). The validity and reliability of an instrument to measure physical science teachers' topic specific pedagogical content knowledge in stoichiometry. *African Journal of Research in Mathematics, Science and Technology Education*, 23(2), 181-194. https://hdl.handle.net/10520/EJC-1936b9b111
- Malone, H. E., & Coyne, I. (2020). Decision-tables for choosing commonly applied inferential statistical tests in comparative and correlation studies. *Nurse Researcher*, 28(1). doi: 10.7748/nr.2019.e1636
- Marsh, H. W., Guo, J., Dicke, T., Parker, P. D., & Craven, R. G. (2020). Confirmatory factor analysis (CFA), exploratory structural equation modeling (ESEM), and set-ESEM: optimal balance between goodness of fit and parsimony. *Multivariate behavioral research*, *55*(1), 102-119. https://doi.org/10.1080/00273171.2019.1602503
- Masmali, A. (2020). A mixed-methods study of examining the concerns of Saudi Arabian middle and secondary school teachers in adopting the Future Gate Learning Management System: A transformation to digital learning (Doctoral dissertation). https://www.proquest.com/dissertations-theses/mixed-methods-studyexamining-concerns-saudi/docview/2425920803/se-2?accountid=27931
- Masood, R., Seshadri, N., & Bhargava, A. (2019). Learning management system. U.S. Patent No. 10,423,929. Washington, DC: U.S. Patent and Trademark Office. http://apssr.com/wp-content/uploads/2021/06/RA-3.pdf
- McCord, S. (2018). A School of Choice: A Case Study of an Instructional Learning Model in a Public School System. *Electronic Theses and Dissertations*. Paper 3372. https://dc.etsu.edu/etd/3372
- McMurtry, A. (2020). Relief for the exhausted post-positivist: New epistemological choices transcend positivism, relativism, and even post-positivism. *Canadian Medical Education Journal*, *11*(6), e197. Doi: 10.36834/cmej.71217
- Mensah, I. K. (2019). Factors influencing the intention of university students to adopt and use e-government services: An empirical evidence in China. SAGE Open, 9(2), 2158244019855823. https://doi.org/10.1177%2F2158244019855823

- Micceri, T. (1989). The unicorn, the normal curve, and other improbable creatures. The unicorn, the normal curve, and other improbable creatures. Psychological Bulletin, 105(1), 156. https://psycnet.apa.org/doi/10.1037/0033-2909.105.1.156
- Miller, J. D. (1983). Scientific literacy: A conceptual and empirical review. *Daedalus*, 29-48. https://www.jstor.org/stable/20024852
- Ministry of Communication and Information Technology, (2017). ICT indicators in K.S.A. (Q3-2017). Retrieved from https://www.mcit.gov.sa/en/standardindicators/99050
- Ministry of Education, (2016). General statistics General education. Retrieved from https://www.moe.gov.sa/ar/Pages/StatisticalInformation.aspx
- Ministry of Education, (2017b). Minister of Education launches "Madrasati" program to implement digital transformation in all schools of the Kingdom for boys and girls. Ministry of Education. Retrieved from https://www.moe.gov.sa/ar/news/Pages/fglaunch.aspx
- Ministry of Education, (2020a). The Ministry of Education provides multiple options at the virtual school to complete the students' educational journey. Ministry of Education. Retrieved from https://www.moe.gov.sa/ar/news/Pages/co-2020-76d.aspx
- Ministry of Education, (2020b). Beginning of general education. Retrieved from https://www.moe.gov.sa/en/TheMinistry/AboutMinistry/Pages/Establishmentoft heMinistryofEducation.aspx
- Ministry of Education. (2019). Statistical Information. Ministry of Education. Retrieved from https://www.moe.gov.sa/ar/Pages/StatisticalInformation.aspx
- Ministry of Interior (2017), Custodian of the Two Holy Mosques chairs cabinet's session. Retrieved from https://www.moi.gov.sa/wps/portal/Home/Home/dphome/! ut/p/z0/fU49D4IwFPwrXRjJeyBBHYkDKJHEkCh2aQo2UpVX0Qb8RbcXS73 lcsBhwo4yUFfpdWG5MPpM4\_FpBusiwKcyxWiMm2SI75HhdYxlAqgh3w\_y W3om99zxPgjSGrPhaqzmh20aMkDyfamk6xOSTr4aQ8JDWf8jkq2n1oOaumByBkR-gH2KwrIX78Lynpy-z3q4k/
- Mirzaei, A., & Shabani Nia, F. (2020). Review of e-learning modern systems. *Interdisciplinary Journal of Virtual Learning in Medical Sciences*, 4(2), 62-74.
- Mirzaei, M. (2020). Effects of Learning Management System (LMS) and Knowledge Management (KM). International Journal of New Chemistry. DOI: https://dx.doi.org/10.22034/ijnc.2020.121481.1095
- Mirzajani, H. (2017). Factors Influencing Information Communication Technology Utilization Among Student Teachers Of Malaysian Research Universities. http://psasir.upm.edu.my/id/eprint/70653/1/FPP%202017%203%20IR.pdfB

- Mission, S. A. C. (2006). Educational System in Saudi Arabia. Washington DC, Saudi Cultural Mission.
- Mitchell, B., & Alfuraih, A. (2018). The Kingdom of Saudi Arabia: Achieving the Aspirations of the National Transformation Program 2020 and Saudi Vision 2030 Through Education. Journal of Education and Development, 2(3), 36. DOI: https://doi.org/10.20849/jed.v2i3.526
- Mokhtar, S. A., Katan, H., & Hidayat-ur-Rehman, I. (2018). Instructors' Behavioral Intention to Use Learning Management System: An Integrated TAM Perspective. TEM journal-technology education management informatics, 7(3), 513-525. Instructors-Behavioral-Intention-to-Use-Learning-Management-System-An-Integrated-TAM-Perspective.pdf (researchgate.net)
- Moodle, (2017). Activate Madrasati [Tweet]. Retrieved from https://twitter.com/Moodle\_Arabia/status/929790059200630785
- Morin, A. J., Myers, N. D., & Lee, S. (2020). Modern Factor Analytic Techniques: Bifactor Models, Exploratory Structural Equation Modeling (ESEM), and Bifactor-ESEM. *Handbook of sport psychology*, 1044-1073. https://doi.org/10.1002/9781119568124.ch51
- Muhisn, Z., Ahmad, M., Omar, M., & Muhisn, S. (2019). The Impact of Socialization on Collaborative Learning Method in E-Learning Management System (eLMS). *International Journal of Emerging Technologies in Learning* (*iJET*), 14(20), 137-148. https://www.learntechlib.org/p/217125/
- Muñoz, J., Falcó-Gimeno, A., & Hernández, E. (2020). Unexpected event during survey design: promise and pitfalls for causal inference. *Political Analysis*, 28(2), 186-206. DOI: https://doi.org/10.1017/pan.2019.27
- Mustapha, A., Mohammed, A., Egigogo, A. R., Kutiriko, A. A., & Dokoro, A. H. (2020). Factors Affecting the Utilization and Adoption of Technology in Education. In *The Role of Technology in Education*. IntechOpen. The Role of Technology in Education - Google Books
- Naser, F. M. A. (2020). Exploring Perceptions of Education Experts Regarding" Creative School" and Its Leadership Role in Public Education. *International Education Studies*, *13*(5), 132-143. DOI https://eric.ed.gov/?id=EJ1254645
- Nguyen, T., Shih, M., Srivastava, D., Tirthapura, S., & Xu, B. (2019). Stratified random sampling over streaming and stored data. In *Advances in Database Technology-22nd International Conference on Extending Database Technology (EDBT)*. DOI: https://doi.org/10.1007/s10619-020-07315-w
- Nickerson, R. S. (2020). Technology in education in 2020: Thinking about the not-distant future. *Technology in education: Looking toward*, 1-9. DOI: https://www.taylorfrancis.com/chapters/edit/10.4324/9780203052235-5/technology-education-2020-thinking-distant-future-raymond-nickerson

- Nilsson, A. (2018). Attitudes towards, expectations of, and competence regarding ICT and digital learning tools: A quantitative study among Swedish EFL teachers in secondary/upper secondary school. urn:nbn:se:lnu:diva-75337
- Nyembezi, N., & Bayaga, A. (2015). Analysis of the Effect of Effort Expectancy on School Learners' Adoption and Use of Cloud Computing. Journal of Communication, 6(1), 113-119.
- Oechslein, O., Fleischmann, M., & Hess, T. (2014). An application of UTAUT2 on social recommender systems: Incorporating social information for performance expectancy. In 2014 47th Hawaii international conference on system sciences (pp. 3297-3306). IEEE. DOI: 10.1109/HICSS.2014.409
- Olawale, K. B., Abbas, B. Z., & Ado, N. M. (2020). Challenges of Effective Utilization of Information and Communication Technology (ICT) in Teaching and Learning of Vocational and Technical Education. http://www.ijsred.com/
- Olugbara, C. T., Imenda, S. N., Olugbara, O. O., & Khuzwayo, H. B. (2020). Moderating effect of innovation consciousness and quality consciousness on intentionbehavior relationship in E-learning integration. *Education and Information Technologies*, 25(1), 329-350.DOI: https://doi.org/10.1007/s10639-019-09960w
- Omar, M. K., Zahar, F. N., & Rashid, A. M. (2020). Knowledge, skills, and attitudes as predictors in determining teachers' competency in Malaysian TVET institutions. Universal Journal of Educational Research, 8(3C), 95-104. DOI:10.13189/ujer.2020.081612
- Onaolapo, S., & Oyewole, O. (2018). Performance expectancy, effort expectancy, and facilitating conditions as factors influencing smart phones use for mobile learning by postgraduate students of the University of Ibadan, Nigeria. *Interdisciplinary Journal of e-Skills and Lifelong Learning*, 14(1), 95-115. https://doi.org/10.28945/4085
- Oonk, C., Gulikers, J., den Brok, P. J., Wesselink, R., Beers, P., & Mulder, M. (2020). Teachers as brokers: adding a university-society perspective to higher education teacher competence profiles. *Higher Education: the international journal of higher education and educational planning*. DOI: https://doi.org/10.1007/s10734-020-00510-9
- Oraif, I., & Elyas, T. (2021). The impact of COVID-19 on learning: Investigating EFL learners' engagement in online courses in Saudi Arabia. Education Sciences, 11(3), 99. https://doi.org/10.3390/educsci11030099
- Ouyang, Z., Yao, C. N., & Hu, X. (2020). Crisis spillover of corporate environmental misconducts: The roles of perceived similarity, familiarity, and corporate environmental responsibility in determining the impact on oppositional behavioral intention. *Business Strategy and the Environment*, 29(4), 1797-1808. https://doi.org/10.1002/bse.2474

- Pallant, J. (2007). SPSS Survival Manual: step-by-step guide to data analysis, 3rd edn, Allen & Unwin, Australia. SPSS Survival Manual: A step by step guide to data analysis using IBM SPSS - Julie Pallant - Google Books
- Pangaribuan, C. H., & Wulandari, Y. S. (2018). A Crowdfunding Platform User Acceptance: An empiricalExamination of Performance Expectancy, Effort Expectancy, Social Factors, Facilitating Condition, Attitudes and Behavioral Intention. In Asian Forum on Business Education International Conference (AFBE). Jakarta, Indonesia. SU-AFBE 2018: Proceedings of the 1st Sampoerna University-AFBE International ... - Google Books
- Park, Y. S., Konge, L., & Artino, A. R. (2020). The positivism paradigm of research. *Academic Medicine*, 95(5), 690-694. https://doi.org/10.1097/ACM.00000000003093
- Paul, K. J., Musa, M., & Nansubuga, A. K. (2015). Facilitating condition for E-learning adoption—Case of Ugandan universities. Journal of Communication and Computer, 12(5), 244-249.
- Pavan, A. (2013). A New Perspective on the Quest for Education: The Saudi Arabian Way to Knowledge Society. *Higher Education Studies*, 3(6), 25-34. https://eric.ed.gov/?id=EJ1079218
- Peñarroja, V., Sánchez, J., Gamero, N., Orengo, V., & Zornoza, A. M. (2019). The influence of organizational facilitating conditions and technology acceptance factors on the effectiveness of virtual communities of practice. *Behavior & Information* https://doi.org/10.1080/0144929X.2018.1564070
- Peterson, J. E. (2020). *Historical Dictionary of Saudi Arabia*. Rowman & Littlefield Publishers. Historical Dictionary of Saudi Arabia - J. E. Peterson - Google Books
- Platform. Scientific Journal of King Faisal University Basic and Applied Sciences, 316-324.
- Poulter, V., & Cook, T. (2020). Teaching music in the early years in schools in challenging circumstances: developing student teacher competence and confidence through cycles of enactment. *Educational Action Research*, 1-17. https://doi.org/10.1080/09650792.2020.1765185
- Preacher, K. J., & Hayes, A. F. (2004). SPSS and SAS procedures for estimating indirect effects in simple mediation models. Behavior research methods, instruments, & computers, 36(4), 717-731. DOI: https://doi.org/10.3758/BF03206553
- Preacher, K. J., & Hayes, A. F. (2008). Asymptotic and resampling strategies for assessing and comparing indirect effects in multiple mediator models. Behavior research methods, 40(3), 879-891.
- Rabiman, R., Nurtanto, M., & Kholifah, N. (2020). Design and Development E-Learning System by Learning Management System (LMS) in Vocational

- Raman, A., Don, Y., Khalid, R., & Rizuan, M. (2014). Usage of learning management system (Moodle) among postgraduate students: UTAUT model. Asian Social Science, 10(14), 186-192. http://doi.org/10.5539/ass.v10n14p186
- Ranellucci, J., Rosenberg, J., & Poitras, E. (2020). Exploring pre-service teachers' use of technology: The technology acceptance model and expectancy-value theory. Journal of Computer Assisted Learning. https://doi.org/10.1111/jcal.12459
- Raza, S. A., Qazi, W., Khan, K. A., & Salam, J. (2021). Social isolation and acceptance of the learning management system (LMS) in the time of COVID-19 pandemic: an expansion of the UTAUT model. *Journal of Educational Computing Research*, 59(2), 183-208. http://us.sagepub.com/en-us/journals-permissions
- Rencher, A. C., & Christensen, W. F. (2012). Confirmatory Factor Analysis. Methods of Multivariate Analysis, Third Edition, 479–500.
- Šabić, J., Baranović, B., & Rogošić, S. (2022). Teachers' self-efficacy for using information and communication technology: The interaction effect of gender and age. *Informatics* in *Education*, 21(2), 353-373. https://doi.org/10.15388/infedu.2022.11
- Saleh, S. S., Nat, M., & Aqel, M. (2022). Sustainable Adoption of E-Learning from the TAM Perspective. *Sustainability*, *14*(6), 3690. https://doi.org/10.3390/su14063690
- Sánchez-Prieto, J. C., Olmos-Migueláñez, S., & García-Peñalvo, F. J. (2017). MLearning and pre-service teachers: An assessment of the behavioral intention using an expanded TAM model. *Computers in Human Behavior*, 72, 644-654. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.chb.2016.09.061
- Savela, T. (2018). The advantages and disadvantages of quantitative methods in schoolscape research. Linguistics and Education, 44, 31-44. https://doi.org/10.1145/3378184.3378221
- Scherer, R., Siddiq, F., & Tondeur, J. (2019). The technology acceptance model (TAM): A meta-analytic structural equation modeling approach to explaining teachers' adoption of digital technology in education. *Computers & Education*, *128*, 13-35. https://doi.org/10.1145/3378184.3378221
- Sekaran, U., & Bougie, R. (2016). Research methods for business: A skill building approach. John Wiley & Sons. Research Methods For Business: A Skill Building Approach - Uma Sekaran, Roger Bougie - Google Books
- Selwyn, N. (2020). Telling tales on technology: Qualitative studies of technology and education. Routledge. Telling Tales on Technology: Qualitative Studies of Technology and Education - Neil Selwyn - Google Books

- Sezer, B., & Yilmaz, R. (2019). Learning management system acceptance scale (LMSAS): A validity and reliability study. *Australasian Journal of Educational Technology*, 35(3). DOI: https://doi.org/10.14742/ajet.3959
- Shahoud, S., Khalloof, H., Duepmeier, C., & Hagenmeyer, V. (2020). Descriptive Statistics Time-based Meta Features (DSTMF) Constructing a better Set of Meta Features for Model Selection in Energy Time Series Forecasting. In *Proceedings* of the 3rd International Conference on Applications of Intelligent Systems (pp. 1-6). https://doi.org/10.1145/3378184.3378221
- Shanmugam, A., Savarimuthu, M. T., & Wen, T. C. (2014). Factors affecting Malaysian behavioral intention to use mobile banking with mediating effects of attitude. Academic Research International, 5(2), 236. http://www.savap.org.pk/journals/ARInt./Vol.5(2)/2014(5.2-28).pdf
- Shaukat, S., Vishnumolakala, V. R., & Alghamdi, A. K. H. (2020). Science Teachers' Perceptions of Personal Science Efficacy Beliefs and Science Teaching in Saudi Arabia, Pakistan, and the United Arab Emirates. *EURASIA Journal of Mathematics, Science and Technology Education*, 16(8), em1866. https://eric.ed.gov/?id=EJ1272155
- Shavlik, M., Köksal, Ö., French, B. F., Haden, C. A., Legare, C. H., & Booth, A. E. (2022). Contributions of causal reasoning to early scientific literacy. *Journal of Experimental Child Psychology*, 224, 105509. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.jecp.2022.105509
- Shishah, W. (2021). Usability Perceptions of the Madrasati Platform by Teachers in Saudi Arabian Schools. International Journal of Advanced Computer Science and Applications, 340-351. https://pesquisa.bvsalud.org/global-literature-onnovel-coronavirus-2019-ncov/resource/pt/covidwho-1527038
- Simanullang, N. H. S., & Rajagukguk, J. (2020). Learning Management System (LMS) Based On Moodle To Improve Students Learning Activity. *JPhCS*, *1462*(1), 012067. 6596/1462/1/012067/meta
- Singh, N., & Sinha, N. (2020). How perceived trust mediates merchant's intention to use a mobile wallet technology. Journal of Retailing and Consumer Services, 52, 101894. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.jretconser.2019.101894
- Singh, N., Sinha, N., & Liébana-Cabanillas, F. J. (2020). Determining factors in the adoption and recommendation of mobile wallet services in India: Analysis of the effect of innovativeness, stress to use and social influence. *International Journal of Information Management*, 50, 191-205. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.ijinfomgt.2019.05.022
- Siri, A., Supartha, I. W. G., Sukaatmadja, I. P. G., & Rahyuda, A. G. (2020). Does teacher competence and commitment improve teacher's professionalism. *Cogent Business* & *Management*, 7(1), 1781993. https://doi.org/10.1080/23311975.2020.1781993

- Smith, T. W. (2020). Optimizing Questionnaire Design in Cross-National and Cross-Cultural Surveys. Advances in Questionnaire Design, Development, Evaluation and Testing, 471-492. https://doi.org/10.1002/9781119263685.ch19
- Stapor, K. (2020). Descriptive and Inferential Statistics. In Introduction to Probabilistic and Statistical Methods with Examples in R (pp. 63-131). Springer, Cham. https://doi.org/10.1007/978-3-030-45799-0\_2
- Stella, P. (2020). Availability and Utilization of Information and Communication Technologies in Teaching By Special Education Teachers. *Studies in Indian Place Names*, 40(50), 4057-4065.
- Stoker, P., Tian, G., & Kim, J. Y. (2020). 11 Analysis of Variance (ANOVA). Basic Quantitative Research Methods for Urban Planners. https://www.taylorfrancis.com/chapters/edit/10.4324/9780429325021-11/analysis-variance-anova-philip-stoker-guang-tian-ja-young-kim
- Strachan, L. M., & Winkel, C. (2020). Oral History: An Unpredictably Effective Strategy for Teaching ESL to Saudi Arabian Students. Academic Journal of Interdisciplinary Studies, 9(1), 158-158. DOI: https://doi.org/10.36941/ajis-2020-0014
- Sulasmi, E. (2022). Primary School Teachers' Digital Literacy: An Analysis On Teachers' Skills In Using Technological Devices. Journal of Innovation in Educational and Cultural Research, 3(2), 140-145. DOI: 10.46843/jiecr.v3i2.81
- Supardi, S., & Hasanah, E. (2020). Junior High School Students' Experiences of High Technology Based Learning in Indonesia. *International Journal of Learning*, *Teaching and Educational Research*, 19(5). https://doi.org/10.26803/ijlter.19.5.9
- Sweller, J. (2020). Cognitive load theory and educational technology. *Educational Technology Research and Development*, 68(1), 1-16. https://doi.org/10.1007/s11423-019-09701-3
- Syaad, P., & Hidayat, W. N. (2018). The effectiveness of learning management system (LMS) on computer assisted learning course for informatics engineering education students. *Advanced Science Letters*, 24(4), 2642-2645. DOI: https://doi.org/10.1166/asl.2018.11024
- Tabachnick, B. G., & Fidell, L. S. (2006). Using multivariate statistics . Boston: Bearson. https://www.pearsonhighered.com/assets/preface/0/1/3/4/0134790545.pdf
- Tabachnick, B. G., Fidell, L. S., & Ullman, J. B. (2007). Using multivariate statistics(Vol.5).Boston,MA:Pearson.https://www.pearsonhighered.com/assets/preface/0/1/3/4/0134790545.pdf
- Taherdoost, H. (2019). What is the best response scale for survey and questionnaire design; review of different lengths of rating scale/attitude scale/Likert scale. *Hamed Taherdoost*, 1-10. https://hal.archives-ouvertes.fr/hal-02557308

- Tanveer, M., Bhaumik, A., & Hassan, S. (2020). COVID-19 Pandemic, Outbreak Educational Sector And Students Online Learning In Saudi Arabia. Journal of Entrepreneurship Education, 23(3). https://www.lincolnedu.education/pdf/faculty\_members/6.%20Covid-19pandemic-outbreak-educational-sector-1528-2651-23-3-589.pdf
- Tarhini, A., Masa'deh, R. E., Al-Busaidi, K. A., Mohammed, A. B., & Maqableh, M. (2017). Factors influencing students' adoption of e-learning: a structural equation modeling approach. Journal of International Education in Business, 10(2), 164-182. https://doi.org/10.1108/JIEB-09-2016-0032
- Taufiqurrochman, R., Muslimin, I., Rofiki, I., & ABAH, J. A. (2020). Students' Perceptions on Learning Management Systems of Arabic Learning through Blended Learning Model. Jurnal Al-Bayan: Jurnal Jurusan Pendidikan Bahasa Arab, 12(1), 22-36.
- Thomas, L., Tuytens, M., Devos, G., Kelchtermans, G., & Vanderlinde, R. (2020). Transformational school leadership as a key factor for teachers' job attitudes during their first year in the profession. *Educational Management Administration* & *Leadership*, 48(1), 106-132. https://doi.org/10.1177%2F1741143218781064
- Tran, Q. H. (2020). Information Technology Competence, Process Management And Knowledge Management: Manufacturing А Case Of Firms Of Vietnam. Systematic *Pharmacy*, 11(2), Reviews in 763-773. https://www.sysrevpharm.org/abstract/information-technology-competenceprocess-management-and-knowledge-management-a-case-of-manufacturingfirms-of-vietnam-65607.html
- Triviño-Amigo, N., Barrios-Fernandez, S., Mañanas-Iglesias, C., Carlos-Vivas, J., Mendoza-Muñoz, M., Adsuar, J. C., ... & Rojo-Ramos, J. (2022). Spanish Teachers' Perceptions of Their Preparation for Inclusive Education: The Relationship between Age and Years of Teaching Experience. *International Journal of Environmental Research and Public Health*, 19(9), 5750. https://doi.org/10.3390/ijerph19095750
- Tyson, S. D. (2020). Exploring Parent-teacher Communication Through Technology: A Case Study (Doctoral dissertation, Northcentral University). https://www.proquest.com/docview/2392029387?pqorigsite=gscholar&fromopenview=true
- Uğur, N. G., & Turan, A. H. (2018). E-learning adoption of academicians: a proposal for an extended model. *Behavior & Information Technology*, *37*(4), 393-405.https://doi.org/10.1080/0144929X.2018.1437219
- Urhahne, D. (2015). Teacher behavior as a mediator of the relationship between teacher judgment and students' motivation and emotion. Teaching and Teacher Education, 45, 73-82. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.tate.2014.09.006

- Vaganova, O. I. (2019). Formation of competence in the possession of modern educational technologies at a university. *Amazonia Investiga*, 8(23), 87-95. https://amazoniainvestiga.info/index.php/amazonia/article/view/851
- Veal, A.J. (2005). Business Research Methods: A Managerial Approach, (2nd edn) Pearson Education: Australia, French Forest.
- Vehko, T., Hyppönen, H., Puttonen, S., Kujala, S., Ketola, E., Tuukkanen, J., ... & Heponiemi, T. (2019). Experienced time pressure and stress: electronic health records usability and information technology competence play a role. *BMC medical informatics and decision making*, 19(1), 160. DOI https://doi.org/10.1186/s12911-019-0891-z
- Venkatesh, V., Morris, M. G., Davis, G. B., & Davis, F. D. (2003). User acceptance of information technology: Toward a unified view. *MIS quarterly*, 425-478. https://doi.org/10.2307/30036540
- Verma, R. K. (2022, November 23-24). A Technological Adaptation of Open Educational Resources as Cultural Heritage of e-learning Platforms through Information and Communication Technology. In Digitalization of Culture Through Technology: Proceedings of the International Online Conference On Digitalization And Revitalization Of Cultural Heritage Through Information Technology-ICDRCT-21, KIIT University, Bhubaneswar (p. 197). Taylor & Francis. https://asset-pdf.scinapse.io/prod/3125976894/3125976894.pdf
- Walabe, E. (2020). E-Learning Delivery in Saudi Arabian Universities (Doctoral dissertation, Université d'Ottawa/University of Ottawa). http://dx.doi.org/10.20381/ruor-24303
- Wang, J., & Wang, X. (2019). Structural equation modeling: Applications using Mplus. John Wiley & Sons. Structural Equation Modeling: Applications Using Mplus -Jichuan Wang, Xiaoqian Wang - Google Books
- Wang, V., Torrisi-Steele, G., & Reinsfield, E. (2020). Transformative learning, epistemology and technology in adult education. *Journal of Adult and Continuing Education*, 1477971420918602. https://doi.org/10.1177%2F1477971420918602
- Warshaw, P. R., & Davis, F. D. (1985). The accuracy of behavioral intention versus behavioral expectation for predicting behavioral goals. The Journal of psychology, 119(6), 599-602. Doi https://www.tandfonline.com/doi/abs/10.1080/00223980.1985.10542933
- Watson, S. L., Yu, J. H., Alamri, H., & Watson, W. R. (2020). Preservice teachers' technology integration attitude change in a course implementing digital badges. *Journal of Technology and Teacher Education*, 28(1), 89-116. https://www.learntechlib.org/primary/p/211054/
- Weeks, K. W., Coben, D., O'Neill, D., Jones, A., Weeks, A., Brown, M., & Pontin, D. (2019). Developing and integrating nursing competence through authentic technology-enhanced clinical simulation education: Pedagogies for

reconceptualising the theory-practice gap. *Nurse education in practice*, *37*, 29-38. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.nepr.2019.04.010

- Wilhelm, R. A., Miller, M. W., & Gable, P. A. (2019). Neural and attentional correlates of intrinsic motivation resulting from social performance expectancy. *Neuroscience*, 416, 137-146. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.neuroscience.2019.07.039
- Williams, D., Brick, J. M., Edwards, W. S., & Giambo, P. (2020). Questionnaire Design Issues in Mail Surveys of All Adults in a Household. Advances in Questionnaire Design, Development, Evaluation and Testing, 697-721. https://doi.org/10.1002/9781119263685.ch28
- Winstone, N., Bourne, J., Medland, E., Niculescu, I., & Rees, R. (2020). "Check the grade, log out": students' engagement with feedback in learning management systems. *Assessment & Evaluation in Higher Education*, 1-13.
- Wirawan, A. E., Wail, D., Adhiatma, D., Prabowo, G. S., Gutandjala, I. I., & Suroso, J. S. (2018). Factor Influencing the User Satisfaction in Adopting E-Learning Based on Open Source Learning Management System Platform at PT. Mahadana Dasha Utama. Journal of Theoretical & Applied Information Technology, 96(5), 1204-1212. http://www.jatit.org/volumes/Vol96No5/3Vol96No5.pdf
- Wiseman, A. W., Al-bakr, F., Davidson, P. M., & Bruce, E. (2018). Using technology to break gender barriers: gender differences in teachers' information and communication technology use in Saudi Arabian classrooms. *Compare: A Journal of Comparative and International Education*, 48(2), 224-243. https://doi.org/10.1080/03057925.2017.1301200
- Woodruff, C. E., & Heidi Wagner, O. D. (2020). Utilization of Technology in Optometric Education: Moving from Enhancement to Transformation. *Optometric Education*, 45(2), 2019. https://journal.opted.org/article/utilization-of-technology-in-optometriceducation-moving-from-enhancement-to-transformation/
- Wu, L., Hsieh, P. J., & Wu, S. M. (2022). Developing effective e-learning environments through e-learning use mediating technology affordance and constructivist learning aspects for performance impacts: Moderator of learner involvement. *The Internet and Higher Education*, 55, 100871. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.iheduc.2022.100871
- Yemini, M., & Sagie, N. (2016). Research on internationalisation in higher education– exploratory analysis. *Perspectives: Policy and Practice in Higher Education*, 20(2-3), 90-98. https://doi.org/10.1080/13603108.2015.1062057
- Yu, C. S. (2012). Factors affecting individuals to adopt mobile banking: Empirical evidence from the UTAUT model. *Journal of electronic commerce research*, 13(2), 104. http://www.jecr.org/sites/default/files/13\_3\_p01\_0.pdf

- Yunita, R. (2020). A Study on Online Learning Management System: Implementation of Edmodo-Based Blended English Learning Method. Southeast Asian Journal of Islamic Education Management, 1(1), 105-117. DOI: https://doi.org/10.21154/sajiem.v1i1.21
- Yurzhenko, A. Y. (2019). An e-course based on the LMS MOODLE to teach" Maritime English for professional purpose". *Information Technologies and Learning Tools*, 71(3), 92-101. http://rep.ksma.ks.ua/jspui/handle/123456789/57
- Zaghloul, H. S., & Rabeh, M. D. (2020). Educational Media And Educational Technology Within Specific Education In Egypt And KSA: Challenges And Prospects For Development. *Οδραзование и наукА*, 22(1), 170. https://cyberleninka.ru/article/n/educational-media-and-educational-technologywithin-specific-education-in-egypt-and-ksa-challenges-and-prospects-fordevelopment
- Zhan, Y., Jiang, Y., Wan, Z. H., & Guo, J. J. (2020). Is There an "Expectancy 3 Value" Effect? Investigating the Impact of Self-Efficacy and Learning Motives on Chinese Undergraduates" Use of Deep Language Learning Strategies. Asia-Pacific Education Researcher. DOI https://doi.org/10.1007/s40299-020-00516-y
- Zheng, Y., Wang, J., Doll, W., Deng, X., & Williams, M. (2018). The impact of organizational support, technical support, and self-efficacy on faculty perceived benefits of using learning management system. *Behavior & Information Technology*, 37(4), 311-319. https://doi.org/10.1080/0144929X.2018.1436590
- Zhu, X., Raquel, M., & Aryadoust, V. (2019). Structural equation modeling to predict performance in English proficiency tests. Quantitative Data Analysis for Language Assessment Volume II: Advanced Methods, 101. https://www.taylorfrancis.com/chapters/edit/10.4324/9781315187808-5/structural-equation-modeling-predict-performance-english-proficiency-testsxuelian-zhu-michelle-raquel-vahid-aryadoust
- Zikmund, W. G., Babin, B. J., Carr, J. C., & Griffin, M. (2003). Business research methods (ed.). Thomson/South-Western, Cincinnati, OH.
- Zimmermann, T. (2020). Social Influence or Rational Choice? Two Models and Their Contribution to Explaining Class Differentials in Student Educational Aspirations. *European Sociological Review*, 36(1), 65-81. https://doi.org/10.1093/esr/jcz054
- Ziraba, A., Akwene, G. C., & Lwanga, S. C. (2020). The Adoption And Use Of Moodle Learning Management System In Higher Institutions Of Learning: A Systematic Literature Review. *American Journal of Online and Distance Learning*, 2(1), 1-21. DOI: https://doi.org/10.47672/ajodl.489
- Zitoun, O. A. (2020). COVID-19 Pandemic: Other Perspective. Saudi Arabia. International Journal of Medical Students, 8(1), 64-65. DOI: https://doi.org/10.5195/ijms.2020.506